NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Wednesday, September 21, 2016
1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATIONS:

401 N. Carson Street
2" Floor Chambers
Carson City, NV 89701

Video Conference Location:
555 E. Washington Ave.
Governor’s Conference Room #5100
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Phone Conference Call Number:
888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739






NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
1&%%}\4]%5]3)% Nevada Commission on Tourism
ON TOURISM

MEETING LOCATION:

Commissioners Nevada Commission on Tourism
Lt. Governor Mark 401 N. Carson Street — 2" Floor
Hutchison, Carson City, NV 89701
Commission Chair*
Cindy carano, Vice Chair® VIDEO CONFERENCE LOCATION:
e 555 E. Washington Ave #5100
John Wagnon* Las Vegas, NV 89101
Rossi Ralenkotter™®
Jennifer Cunningham* TELECONFERENCE NUMBER:
Herb Santos™ 888-363-4735; Access Code: 4878739
Mike Vaswani*
Dallas Haun*
A — MEETING DATE:
Bob Stoldal Wednesday, September 21, 2016 - 1:00 PM
Julia Arger

Richard Arnold

*Voting Member AG E N DA

THIS MEETING IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW” AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, NV
Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

e  Action may be taken an those items denoted “For Possible Action”.

e Jtems on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.
Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration.

+ Anitem may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

e  Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

*  Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public record. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

* Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.



I. Roll Call

Nevada Commission on Tourism
Septermnber 21, 2016 | Agenda

A. Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting — Cindy Carano, NCOT Vice-Chair
B. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum=~ Cindy Carano, NCOT Vice-Chair

fl. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public comment by
each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers are urged to
avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

. Approval of Minutes — For Possible Action

A. Approval of the June 29, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes

IV. Reports

A. Vice-Chair's Report — Report will be provided by Cindy Carano, NCOT Vice-Chair

B. Administration

a.

FY17 Budget/YTD Financials — Review of the FY16 financials and look at the planned
expenditures for FY17.

Staffing Update — Introduction of new staff members

2016 Governor’s Global Tourism Summit Event Update — Update regarding the agenda,
international buyers and media attending, sponsors/exhibitors, communications outreach
and attendance.

C. Marketing Update

d.

FY17 Integrated Marketing Approach {Fahlgren Mortine) - The agency and TravelNevada
marketing team will present the recommended FY17 integrated marketing plan and request
approval by the Commission - FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Research — Economic Impact Survey {Dean Runyan) — The Division conducts biennial
economic impact research with Dean Runyan and Associates. This report will provide the
results of the economic impact of tourism throughout the state.

Cooperative Marketing — Domestic International Program — Overview of the new
cooperative marketing program allowing partners to advertise to domestic Chinese
{(Mandarin) potential visitors.

Additional Team Updates

D. Public Relations Update

b.

PA Program/2017 Legislative Session Preparation — Efforts undertaken by the Division and its
industry partners in advance of and during the upcoming legislative session.
Additional Team Updates



Nevada Commission on Tourism
September 21, 2016 | Agenda

E. Sales and Industry Partners Update
a. China Reentry Events/Program - Briefing on the upcoming events in China to announce the
new sales/marketing agency and showcase the state’s commitment to the market.
b. Brand USA FY17 Programs — Report on recent Brand USA collaborative activities: In-market
FAMs, U.S. China Tourism Leadership Summit and Olly Ale Trails. Request for Commission
approval - FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

F. Nevada Magazine Update

G. Department Agency Updates
- Division of Museums and History
- Nevada Arts Council
- Nevada Indian Commission

V. Upcoming Meetings

Full Commission Meeting

Tuesday, October 11, 2016 {in conjunction with the Governor’s Global Tourism Summit)
11:30 a.m.

Grand Sierra Resort

Full Commission Meeting — Phone Conference Only
Wednesday, December 14, 2016
1:00 p.m.

VI. Commissianer Comments

Vil. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public comment by
each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers are urged to avoid
repetition of comments made by previous speakers,

VHI. Adjournment— For Possible Action

The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020{2} by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, (775) 687-0621 or via email to
ddykes@travelnevada.com. Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N. Carson
Street, Carson City, Nevada or on www.travelnevada.biz




L et ) J OO0 D0 0D OO OO O o O 30O 3 O O



June 29, 2016
Commission Meeting

Draft Minutes
For Approval

TRAVELNEVADA.COM 3 #TRAVELNEVADA






Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
June 29, 2016

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 1:00 p.m. on June 29, 2016, by
conference call and at 401 N. Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor and Chair Hutchison called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

Commissioners Present:
Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair

Kevin Bagger for Rossi Ralenkotter
Jennifer Cunningham

Don Newman

Herb Santas, Jr.

John Wagnon

Julia Arger

Dallas Haun

Mike Vaswani

Bob Stoldal

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Richard Arnold

Bob Maorse

Ryan Sheltra

Staff present:

Claudia Vecchio, Director

Larry Friedman, Deputy Director

David Peterson, Operations & Finance Manager
Kari Frilot, Sales & Industry Partners

Sarah Bradley, DAG

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

VECCHIO: Good Afternoon. Who just called in?
VASWANI: Mike Vaswani.
VECCHIO: That's great. We're in business.

1



VASWANI:

VECCHIO:

WAGNON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

CUNNINGHAM:

VECCHIO:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

HAUN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Hi, how are you?
We're good. Who just joined us?
John.

lohn, excellent. All right. Lieutenant Governor, | think we are ready to go. We have
a quorum so we can start a meeting and move forward.

Great. Thank you everyone for making time in your schedule, being on this
conference call and this is the time and place set forth for the Nevada Commission
on Tourism meeting, Wednesday, June 29, 2016, 1:00 p.m. I'd like to begin with our
agenda, Item No. 1 which is the roll call. Ms. Vecchio, if you could please call the roll
and confirm a proper posting and then we'll move on to Subsection D and
determination of a quorum as well. You can take all that in one fell swoop.

We do confirm a proper posting. We had a revised agenda but that was posted
before the time required which was Friday at 9:00 a.m. It was properly posted
online and then at various physical locations prior to that time. | will take the roll
call. Lieutenant Governor Hutchinson?

I'm here.

We believe Commissioner Morse is not able to join us. Are you on the line? He's
not. We excuse him. Jennifer Cunningham?

I'm here.

Thank you. Cindy Carano?
Present.

Dallas Haun?

Present.

Don Newman?

I am present in Carson City.

We appreciate you coming over. Rossi Ralenkotter?

2



RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

SANTOS:

VECCHIO:

VASWANI:

VECCHIO:

WAGNON:

VECCHIO:

ARGER:

VECCHIO:

STOLDAL:

VECCHIO:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Here.
Thank you, Rossi. Herb Santos, Jr.?
Present.

Excellent. Ryan Sheltra? We've spoken with him. | think he's going to call in at
some point here and we'll mark him present when he arrives. Mike Vaswani?

Present.

Thank you. John Wagnon?

Here.

Thank you, John. We also have Commissioner Arger.

Here.

lulia is here. Richard Arnold? He's not in attendance. Bob Stoldal?

Present.

Thank you. | am here, sir. Sarah Bradley is here. We have a couple of folks in the

audience here who will be part of the sponsorship discussion, but Lieutenant
Governor, we have a quorum so we should be ready to go.

Great. Thank you very much. Let's move on to Agenda Item No. Il which is public
comment. I'll just note that the telephone number and the access code number
were posted as part of the notice so is there anyone on the phone call who would
like to make a public comment? All right, | am hearing none. Is there anyone in
Carson City? You're physically present in Carson City. Is that right, Ms. Vecchio?

Yes, we are.
Is there anyone there that would like to offer public comment?

There does not appear to be.



HUTCHISON:

DYKES:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Is this being broadcast to any other location?

No, Lieutenant Governor.

Approval of Minutes

HUTCHISON:

CARANO:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

Reports

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

All right, well then we will close out Agenda item No. Il which is public comment and
move on to Agenda Item No. HI, Approval of the Minutes. Commissioners, you've
seen the minutes which have been included in the materials from a March 15, 2016
meeting. Are there any comments, corrections or additions to be made to the new
minutes? I'm hearing none. Chair will expect a motion to approve the minutes.
Please identify yourself on the phone just for the purposes of the record whenever
you speak.

Cindy Carano, move to accept the minutes.

Thank you very much. Vice-Chair has moved for the approval of the minutes. Is
there a second?

Commissioner Herb Santos second.

Thank you, Commissioner Santos. Are there any comments on the motion? I'm
hearing none. Those in favor signify by saying aye.

Ayes around.

Any opposed no. That motion is approved unanimously. We will close out Agenda
Item lIl and move to Agenda Item IV, which are the various topics.

Because of the length of our agenda and wanting to get to our marketing grant
program I'm going to forego my Chair report for now and move on to administrative
and budget updates. Ms. Vecchio.

Thank you very much. This is Claudia Vecchio for the record. | want to go through a
couple of items from an administration and budget standpoint. First, | just wanted
to provide some input and we'll be putting this in commissioners packets moving
forward about the state of the Nevada tourism industry which is doing very well.
Thank you to all of our partners statewide who are really helping to boost numbers
across the board for Nevada tourism.

4



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

When we look at the first quarter of calendar year 2016, which is the third quarter
of FY '16, our visitor volume is up almost 4 percent for January, February and March.
Healthy numbers there during a generally slower part of the year, we're doing very
well there.

Occupancy level is up. Net change over the three months is 1.5 percent. Room
inventory of course is flat, so the fact that we're tracking against a flat room
inventory is good news. Gross gaming revenue is up .8 percent. Some softness in
January and March but February was up 8 percent so a strong month in gaming
revenue.

Convention attendance is really where we're seeing significant increases and those
DMOs that are involved with convention business have had a terrific quarter,
January up 14.5 percent, February 11.6 percent and March 23.8 percent for rolling.
Total over the past 12 months up 15.3 percent, so the convention business is really a
great light in the overall Nevada tourism environment.

Airport volume is up too. You know we've seen significant increases at the Reno-
Tahoe International Airport. McCarran is tracking a strong increase but the percent
change over the rolling 12 months given January, February and March is 6.9 percent
s0 airport buying was up strong as well.

The other bright light we see is in state parks usage. This number is a little skewed
in that it does include some of the big national parks that are outside of Nevada.
Generally speaking, the net-net is that people are really flocking to the parks,
obviously to the centennial of the national parks.

There's a lot of publicity and a lot of notoriety around these extraordinary parks and
so for the rolling 12 months park usage is up 7 percent. Overall numbers are good
and again, we'll include these numbers in our upcoming commissioner report.
Overall the industry is doing well.

From a staffing standpoint, | sent a note out to everyone regarding the change in
our marketing director position. Brenda Nebesky who was our art director is now
moving on to what we're calling our Chief Marketing Officer, a change of title.
Bethany is now Chief Communications Officer and David Peterson is our Chief
Operations and Finance Officer. David, | apologize if that's flip-flopped.

These titles are more indicative of private sector titles. We've all agreed that it's a
good way to position those this year. Brenda Nebesky who was our art director is
now our Chief Marketing Officer. She had some terrific marketing jobs prior to

5



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism B Cultural Affairs

coming to the state and is a great team leader. | look forward to having you all
better integrate with her and get to know her and the marketing team.

Danny Miller who was the art director at Nevada Magazine is now going to move up
and be our art director for Travel Nevada. We are recruiting for a marketing
specialist, and as | mentioned in the email we'll put our web services out to bid. We
have a master services agreement environment here at the state so we can select
from a list of vendors without having to go through the whole procurement process.
At some point, we'll do a contract with an external web master. We have just not
had luck with having an internal person do that work. The marketing specialist will
take on many of the projects that have been on the back burner for awhile,

From a budget standpoint, you have a very skeletal FY16 category expenditure
update. This is for FY16, which ends this week, the end of our fiscal year. When you
look at the end of these categories, which are noted there, obviously travel and
state travel and so on, we're coming very close to spending all of that. The one area
that we are low on, are those that have to do with vendor contracts and advertising.
As you know, those invoices come in after the fact so we fully anticipate completely
expending the promotion advertising international trade and tourism budgets.

it's critical that we spend down to as close to zero as we can in FY16 because that
then becomes a base year for our FY18-19 budgets. The legislature who approves
our 18-19 budget looks at how we spend this particular year and will make
determinations on our budget based on the effective use of the money we are
currently given. This is an important year. It's important for us to spend down to
zero.

You were sent, and | apologize if this was a little later than 1 wanted it to be, but the
FY16-17 expenditures only. | know there are those on the phone who are very
much budget and financial experts and | would welcome a different format if you
choose.

We don't have the typical revenue expenditure kind of an environment. For
example with Governor's Conference, we can show the expenditures and | can show
the sponsorships but they don't link in our system. Those revenues just go into our
reserves and other places. There's no real link between programs, revenue and
expenditures.

David Peterson, who is on the phone, also can answer any questions. This goes
through a very detailed look at our programs and how those funds are allocated at
this point. We'll go through sponsorships in a second. There's 510,000 more in
sponsorships that | was not aware of until yesterday and I'll go through that in a

6



HUTCHISON:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

second. But his gives you an overview of how we spend our money based on the
various categories and the various programs. Are there any questions about that? |
went through that pretty quickly, but any questions, comments?

Any questions for Ms. Vecchio concerning the budgetary items that she just
reviewed?

Yes, this is Cindy Carano. Claudia? The revenues aren't on a separate sheet or
could you include revenues and so we could see what room taxes are. As you
mentioned on the conference, if there are any revenues would be on a separate
account.

Yes, we can certainly send revenues and room tax collections and when we look at
16-17 we're anticipating room tax, and we can send that. Our budget of 40 for the
room tax is on the back of the page, what we're estimating, but this doesn’t give you
a total picture of that anyway. So yes, we can send that revenue so you can get an
idea of where those are. David, I'm not speaking out of turn, am I?

No.

But | didn't see that. | wasn't able to print what you thought the room taxes were
Boing to be.

Yes, and even on the sheet that | gave you, that's not the total room tax allocation;
it's the allocation based on these particular categories because we don't have the
personnel category or operations category on here because those are set. Those
then don't have the room tax that is associated with those categories. We can send
you what that is with the revenues in the report as well.

Okay, where did you say the room tax was?

It's on the back, where it says total legislative authority. We're funded 100 percent
with the room tax, so that's the room tax that is associated with these programs.
It's not the overall total room tax collection. This really just shows expenditures in
Our program categories.

Okay. in the past we've had it year by year and so we could see how it's grown and
how our expenditures would have been able to grow with it.

Yes, absolutely and we'll continue to provide that. We have not provided this depth
of allocation overview of the particular programs that we're working on in the past



CARANO:

PETERSON:

VECCHIO:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

so | wanted you to see what that is. That other sheet that we provide that has the
year over year tax, we will continue to provide that to you.

Okay, great. How much percentage are we up total over year? Year over year?
Claudia, do you want me to take that?
Yes, please, David.

Okay, for the record this is David Peterson, Chief Operations and Finance Officer
with tourism. Right now Ms. Carano, we are projecting that FY16 lodging type
collections will be up around 10.6 percent so we're projecting 22.64 million dollars
for this fiscal year as compared to 22.47 million dollars last fiscal year being fiscal
year 15.

Okay, thank you. The majority of that would be going into marketing?

Yes, of that amount we also deduct the transfers. David, what is our total after we
take the transfers off? It's 147

Ms. Carano, are you just referring to what it would be for us?

Yes, the program budget that we have here. It's only raising about $80,000. | was
just wondering if the other increase, the 10 percent increase, was being shown in
marketing or if it's going into operating budget.

For the record, Dave Peterson. It's split across all of the different categories that we
have as Claudia mentioned. We have category one which is our personnel. We
have our grant program as well that take up some of the allocations separate from
all of the transfers. That fell out of our account, but the largest category that we
have is category 31, That's our promotion and advertising marketing category.

What happens is, at the end of the fiscal year if there are additional lodging tax
revenues that come in above and beyond what was original legislatively authority
for lodging tax collections, those collections go into our reserves category. When
we close out the year at the end of August, those dollars will go into our category
86. The excess lodging tax collections that come in during the course of the fiscal
year build our reserve account.

And then we're able to access those?



PETERSON:

CARANO:

HUTCHISON:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Through a work program, correct. Say we wanted to do an additional domestic
market or ad buy or some additional international advertising, we would do that
through the work program process and be added to the Interim Finance Committee
agenda.

Okay. Good | think we'll be doing that, right? Thank you.

Yes, probably. Okay, thank you Vice-Chairman Carano. Any other questions? Yes,
please, identify yourself for the record.

This is Rossi. How is everybody?

Hi Rossi.

It's a little warm down here. How is it up there?

It's warm but it's not toasty so...

| got you.

Yes.

It's plummeted to about 110 down here right, Rossi?

That's very true, very true. Claudia, are we doing anything on a co-op basis with
Brand USA?

Yes. For Brand USA we have $150,000 co-op that's taken out of our marketing
budget. That is split between a number of programs that we're doing with Brand
USA, and | can certainly send you those programs, Rossi. We're looking at that
television show, what used to be the Jen and Ollie Show that's kind of morphed into
the Ollie Show.

We did a bridge website program for China with Miles and Yennifer who we hired as
an International and PR specialist is our contact with Brand USA. | think we're still
working out some programs. At this point we're at $150,000 leve! with them.

Okay, does that show up just as part of our marketing or is it a separate line item?

It's not a separate line item, Rossi. Right now it's within the international section.

Okay.



VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

VECCHIO:

RALENKOTTER:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

MEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And we can break that out as a separate line item.

I think it would be good because hopefully that will be able to be expanded as you
continue to increase revenues so | think that would be good for us to see.

Sure.

The second one | have is on the co-op Regional Air Service Committee and Ski
Marketing Council. It shows $100,000 for 16 but nothing for 17. Is there a reason
for that?

We've been doing that for years so that's an ongoing partnership that we have with
those two organizations. The Sierra Ski Marketing Council is actually the $10,000
difference. Their membership rate went up to $60,000 but there is no reason to
anticipate that's not going to move forward in 17. Those are partnerships that are
important for us.

Okay. All right.

This is Commissioner Newman. That was one of my questions also, the $100,000
went to zero but then there's a notation, "see sponsorships". And that only
changed $19,000.

Right. The sponsorships are programs that we'll talk about.
Separate.

Right. Those sponsorships and the organizations that we sponsor and the amount
that gets sponsored to each of those is in the recommendations and those change
year over year. | moved those two organizations into sponsorships and I'll talk
about that when we get there, but that's why that changed.

Again Commissioner Newman, another just notation here, Visitor Guide production
went up about $25,000 over last year. Was that something we're doing in-house?
Are we subbing that out?

No, that's Nevada Magazine and we are printing up more guides. We're also
changing paper, we're changing some of the design of the guide to up that guide a
little bit, so it was important for us to put some more money into that, not putting
much and it may not be that much but that's just what we're anticipating.

10



NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

NEWMAN:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | fune 29, 2016
Departrment of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And then my last question is down about two-thirds of the way down, ad
evaluation. We had $81,000 in there in 16 and nothing. Is that something that
we're relying on our agency to give us that information?

We do that kind of full study when we do new creative and to evaluate that sort of a
thing. We do the engoing evaluation of cur advertising in the TNS report, so that's a
little different spot. This is specialty advertising that we did when we had new
creative and otherwise we rely on these other sources of research to do that for us,
We do that on a bi-annual basis or when we get new creative.

Okay.

We see that in a couple of different research programs that we did. Web usability
too, we did that this year and we'll wait a couple years before we do that again.

Okay. Thank you.

Unless you think we should do it more often. Then we can certainly add the cost
back in there, but that's the idea.

Thank you. Mr. Newman, any further questions?
No, that's it for me. Thank you.

Commissioners, any other questions of Ms. Vecchio concerning the Agenda Item IV
B, Administrative and Budget Update?

Claudia, I've got one. Just quickly I'm looking at the international promotion and
advertising budget item, and we got 550 fiscal year 16, 609 fiscal year 17. Can you
just give us just what are the top three or four markets that that's directed towards?
Let's say the top five markets.

Yes. Those are funds and Larry, jump in here if I'm misspeaking, but those are funds
that go to our 10 rep firms for their overall sales and marketing efforts. When we
do the contracts with these rep firms we have an administrative side that is
different for each of those markets depending on the expense of operating in those
markets.

We also have the promotion and advertising side, and again each are allotted a

certain amount based on markets. It's kind of across the board and we can provide
to you the breakout per market; how much is spent both on the administrative side

11



FRIEDMAN:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

and the promotions side. We're happy to do that and we can get that to you as a
follow-up for this. Larry, anything else missing?

No, that's correct.
Okay.

Okay, great. Yes, if you could just give me the allocation that would be great. I'm
just interested in how we allocate that.

Absolutely. We'll provide that to everyone so you can see.

for the record it's Mark Hutchison. The only other point that hasn't been raised
before is this Chambers AV System, 535,000 fiscal year 17. Can you just put a little
detail on that item?

Here in the Laxalt Building chambers we're constantly challenged with technical
issues. We've had some experts in this area come in and look at the chambers and
we've had a number of bids from local companies that exceeded $150,000. We
have figured out with our Buildings and Grounds people, a way to get an actual AV
system in here so that those of you who are sitting on the dais and watching via
video conference will actually be able to do that in a way that is not as awkward as it
is now. It really is just bringing us up technologically.

As you may know too, we host a certain number of meetings in this room that are
public meetings, and we're constantly technologically challenged with those also.
We're not being extravagant but we're really just trying to bring this room up to a
technological level that allows us to run a flawless, seamless meeting.

Have we signed up on a contract on that yet or what are we doing as far as just
documenting that?

We've not signed off on a contract. David, can you provide updates? He's working
with these folks.

Yes. For the record Dave Peterson. Lieutenant Governor, sir, what we're doing is
we're working in conjunction with Purchasing and Buildings and Grounds to help us
minimize the costs associated with the renovation. The plan is to work through
Buildings and Grounds to have them do the labor portion of this so that we can
make the payments directly to B&G so they would be responsible for all the wiring,
the electrical, you know, running the necessary cables. And then maybe doing an
RFP informal solicitation, to have like a company come in and do the design of it and

12



HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

PETERSON:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

the actual setup of the system and the training. That's currently where we're at
right now between our conversations and meetings with Buildings and Grounds and
Purchasing.

There are some things that we will be able to purchase ourselves directly to try to
minimize the costs to us as an agency. We have the luxury of working with a person
whao is familiar with all the electrical in the whole Laxalt building and the part of this
process of running the necessary electrical wiring and data cables. That's currently
where we're at and | think we have a meeting next week with B & G and Purchasing
to discuss the project itself.

Okay, thank you. My biggest concern, Mr. Peterson, is that we make sure that we
have performance criteria identified in the contract and documentation and then
waiver to hold people accountable if the system doesn't work.

It seems like we put these expensive systems in, they don't work, and then they
want to come back and charge for something that should have been done initially
but probably wasn't spelled out clearly. Let's just make sure we have clear
performance criteria for whoever is going to be handling this side of the program.

Yes, for the record, Dave Peterson. That's something that we discussed with B&G
and even if we installed the system let's say in October, November, December time
period, we're going to have whatever contract would be in place with the outside
vendor run through June. That way in case there are any issues with the system, the
equipment, the software and any training that we need we still have an additional
six months to be able to work with or for those folks to be able to work with us,

Yeah.

So thank you. We're definitely keeping that in mind so we don't wind up in a
situation.

I'll just mention this and then I'll get off this subject. We just went through this with
an executive audit committee that | was involved in, the head of the agency signs off
on this and is responsible to make sure that the RFP is accurate, the criteria is
accurate and make sure that you're happy with it. Don't think you're going to hand
it over to a different department or the attorney general's office and there's going
to be some substantive involvement there in terms of terms and performance
criteria. We have to make sure that it happens out of NCOT and we’re happy with
the criteria that we set forth because we're ultimately going to be responsible for it.

Rural Marketing Grants

13



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

FRILOT:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

All right, any other questions on Agenda Item IV B, Administration and Budget
Update? All right, I'm not hearing any. We'll go ahead and close out that agenda
item and move on to Agenda Item IV C which is Fiscal Year 17 First Cycle Rural
Marketing Grant Recommendation Allocation. This will be for possible action and a
vote. Ms. Vecchio.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. lust as a reminder, the Division of Tourism works
in two different grant categories. One is our Rural Marketing Grants in which there
are two cycles per year. This is the first cycle and that's what you'll be voting on
today.

We also have the Projects Relating to Tourism Grants and this is primarily
infrastructure grant allocation. You voted on that one last meeting and that oneisa
biannual amount of $200,000. This one, the Rural Marketing Grants are 1.4 million
dollars and Kari Frilot will go through the recommendations for this year along with
Commissioner Newman who sits on the Territory Advisory Council who is
painstakingly and intimately involved with the decision making process. | will turn it
over to Kari for her overview of this process.

Thank you Claudia. Thank you. For the record Kari Frilot, Rural Programs Manager.
Good afternoon, Governor, commissioners, callers, co-workers and those of you in
Carson City. I'm before you today to ask for your approval to award funds from the
fiscal year 2017 Rural Marketing Grant Program as recommended on the Excel
spreadsheet included in your meeting packet.

These recommendations are a result of a process that included a meeting with all of
the territory chairs and the rural commissioner to review and agree on awards. That
meeting took place on June 14 and concluded with a vote of consensus for the
awards reflected in today's request.

Fiscal year 2017 has 1.4 million available for awards. That will be this year that
we're awarding. This amount will increase to 1.65 million beginning in fiscal year
2018 and that's the result of having a meeting with the Interim Finance Committee
on April 14 of this year where they allocated an additional $250,000 for this
program.

We were able to allocate the additional $250,000 in fiscal year 2016 to those
projects that were not fully funded in 2016, and comments in the grant
recommendations for fiscal year 2017 reflect those allocations so that's what I'm
referring to when you read anything in the current recommendations about
allocations in 2016.

14



HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

One example of that is that we were able to allocate an additional $10,000 to the
Lake Tahoe Shakespeare Festival for their marketing campaign. A brief description
of the grant program is included under this topic on today's agenda. Thank you,
Claudia, for including that.

For the fiscal year 2017 First Cycle Marketing Grant Program we received 207
applications. There were nine new organizations that applied for funding in that.
We are recommending funding 162 of the projects. 1.747 million was requested
and we're recommending an award of $895,770 which leaves us a little over
$500,000 for the second cycle awards.

| humbly request your approval to move forward with recommendations and invite
any questions you might have.

Thank you very much, Ms. Frilot. | appreciate that update. | know Commissioner
Newman, you've been very involved in this process. Would you like to make any
record comments or comments about the process?

Well, yes | would. Commissioner Newman for the record. | would just let everyone
know that each and every one of these applications is thoroughly vetted. We spent
a lot of time discussing the merits, the history and the intent, what we believe to be
the intent of these requests. Again, this is a three-hour to four-hour process that
we go through each time we review these applications.

We put a lot of time, effort, energy and thought into this and Kari, I'm sure can
answer any questions or myself regarding any specific reguests so all of the advisory
or the chairmen participated and it's a pretty good healthy discussion that takes
place so we're all pretty proud of the outcome.

Thank you very much, Commissioner Newman, again for your time and your effort
and your talents you bring to the task. Before | open up for questions, | just have a
couple of overview questions.

You have 207 requests. How does that compare to prior years? Ms. Frilot or
Commissioner Newman, whoever wants to take it. How does the 207 compare to
prior years? And then, are there any territories that you are concerned about that
have not been submitting applications or are not as dialed into the rural grant
programs as we'd like them to be? if you could take those up one at a time I'd
appreciate it.

15



FRILOT:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

NEWMAN:

FRILOT:

NEWMAN:

FRILOT:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Kari Frilot for the record. The 207 requests is pretty close to what we
received last year for the first cycle. It was a little lower than that the preceding
four years, but before that it was right up around 200 plus. So it runs pretty true.

As far as the territories participating, this particular cycle | was really pleased to see
that there was a lot more participation by the territories and the one territory that
really was not requesting funding before this, really stepped up this time and that
was Las Vegas Territory. They really want to beef up their marketing in the rural
areas of Clark County. Also in Pony Express Territory there's a few changes going
on in that territory, but they still come through with a good number of requests.

Thank you very much. We'll open it now for questions from the commissioners
concerning the Rural Marketing Grant Program recommendations. And please
identify yourself for the record when you speak.

This is Commissioner Herb Santos. If 1 could ask a question? Would it be possible
on these forms to, if it's not too much work, to get a breakdown as to how much
was recommended to each of the counties, what percentage of the funds that were
distributed, and then what each county requested and what was recommended for
each county?

By county or...

This is Kari Frilot.

Go ahead, Kari.

No, that wouldn't be a problem. | can certainly do that.
Thank you.

Great. Thank you. Other questions, comments of other commissioners concerning
the Rural Grant Recommendations? All right, this will be the last chance before we
take a vote, anyone? Ms. Frilot, thank you very much. Commissioner Newman,
thank you very much.

The Chair will entertain the motion to approve the fiscal year 2017 first cycle Rural
Marketing Grant Recommendations as set forth in Agenda Item 4C and as
encompassed within the packet of materials that we all received with the heading
Fiscal Year 2017 First Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Program Recommendations and
with the summary of the grants and the comments and the funding that has been
recommended.

16



WAGNON:

HUTCHISON:
CUNNINGHAM:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

FRIEDMAN:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Commissioner Wagnon. | move to approve the FY17 First Cycle Rural
Marketing Grant Recommendations as outlined in your comments.

Thank you very much, commissioner. Is there a second?
Commissioner Jennifer Cunningham, | second.

Thank you, commissioner. Are there any comments, with the motion and a second,
are there any comments on the motion? Hearing none those in favor signify by
saying aye.

Aye.

Any opposed no. That motion passes unanimously. Thank you very much. Let's
move now onto Agenda Item IV D, 2016 Governor's Global Tourism Summit
Overview. Ms. Vecchio.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Claudia Vecchio for the record. In your packets |
provided a preliminary agenda of the upcoming Governor's Global Tourism Summit
that will take place October 11 and 12, but with pre and post FAM and press trips a
couple of days before and after that conference.

| just wanted you all to see where we were going with this conference. It will be at
the Grand Sierra Resort in Reno this year. Larry and his team have created great
excitement among the international buyer community and | know we'll have at least
40 if not more buyers from our international markets. Larry, do you have an update
that you want to add?

Basically our goal is to have 50 plus and many of the countries have already come
back with companies like Australia is bringing JUCY, South Korea is bringing Hana,
but the invitations have gone out. The two FAM trips both start in Las Vegas. One
will go up to Reno via 93 and the other will go up via 95.

Thank you. Larry and his team are working incredibly hard on this and they always
provide an extraordinary number of international buyers for our industry to meet
with. New this year and you'll note this on the agenda will be a Media Marketplace.
Bethany and her team as well as our international PR reps are working to bring in
media as well. Invitations have gone out for that and we're excited about having
that opportunity for our industry to meet with media as well.

17



HUTCHISON:

CUNNINGHAM:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The agenda continues to form and we have good speakers. We have Richard
Cutting-Miller from this group called Resonance Consultancy and he's going to do
Global Tourism Trends with some interactivity with the audience so that will be a
great way to start the agenda.

we'll also have a panel on looking at the issues that impact the U.5. brand abroad.
This kind of morphed from a political environment into more of a social and
economic overview environment, but we have so many things happening as you all
well know in the world right now that could impact travel to the U.S.

We are going to be privileged to hear from lonathan Grella who's Executive Vice
President at U.S. Travel Association and Mike Fullerton who's with Brand USA.
Daniel Chan who's our rep firm at East West Marketing in China will be part of this
panel, and we're continuing to look for panelists who can provide insights into
particular regions in the world. | think that will be an incredibly enlightening
discussion about all these potential impacts on inbound travel.

We also have a great lunch speaker, Jeff Salz, who can be seen on the Discovery
Network and the History Channel. He's a cultural anthropologist and an adventurer
and he'll talk a little bit about how to compel travelers to come to Nevada to this
great adventure that we have in the state.

Going back on the evening of the 11", the dinner event, we're going to do a
celebration of the U.S. China Year of Tourism so we're looking at having some
Chinese entertainment as well as a speaker who can talk a little bit about the
importance of this year and our relationship with China.

That's where we're going with this. | think it's shaping up well. We're working with
Tiffany East as our event planner and she's doing a great job working with the Grand
Sierra Resort folks. | wanted you all to see where we were, and if anybody has any
thoughts about spezakers or anything else you'd like to see please let me know.

Thank you very much. Commissioners, any questions for Ms. Vecchio about
Governor's Global Tourism Summit?

This is Commissioner Jennifer Cunningham. | think it sounds great and | applaud you
for all the hard work. | look forward to sending our whole staff there, so thank you.

Excellent.

It's a terrific summit and the folks who show up for that are just excited, they love
Las Vegas, they love Nevada, they love Reno, they love the exposure to the state.

18



FRIEDMAN:

VECCHIO:

FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I'm really looking forward to spending time no matter which side of the state you're
on it's always a success and people are very excited.

| know that Claudia, you and Larry and the team have spent a lot of time, so thank
you for your efforts. | think half the people show up just to see Larry because he's
such an international rock star as | call him in the tourism community. He's a big
draw, just having Larry show up. It's quite a phenomenon to see Larry's groupies
following him around the conference, so show up if for no other reason than to see
that.

All right, any questions or comments about Agenda Item IV D? We're going to close
that out and move on the Agenda item IV E, Commercial Airport Summit June 30
and our meeting update, and that's tomorrow. | know we're getting ready down
here to welcome the summit and move forward in a big way.

Claudia, would you like me to talk about it?
Yes, please.

The summit will be tomorrow starting at 9:00 a.m. at the Nevada State Museum in
Las Vegas which is where | currently am having checked out the facilities and how
the room is set up, et cetera, and we're all ready for everyone.

We decided to invite the five airports that have had or have commercial service so
the airports included are Las Vegas, Reno-Tahoe, Elko, Wendover and Ely. In
addition we have invited the five corresponding marketing entities, the LVCVA, the
RSCVA, the Elko Convention Visitors Authority, the city of Wendover and the White
Pine County Fair and Rec Board.

There is an agenda, which includes airport infrastructure, air services, customs,
airline risk mitigation and potential partnerships. One of the things that | think
that's already come out of the meetings we've had with the entities in setting up
this meeting is | think a better understanding of room tax and the Travel Nevada
room tax and that risk mitigation is not an appropriate use for the room tax funding.

The other thing about the meeting tomorrow, just for those on the call that are
participating in the meeting, | had wondered how to be politically correct in
positioning the different attendees. The room we're in is shaped like the State of
Nevada and so the RSCVA will be where Reno would be. Las Vegas will be on the Las
Vegas side of the state and the Lieutenant Governor is approximately in Tonopah.

19



HUTCHISON:

FRIEDMAN:

HUTCHISON:

FRIEDMAN:

HUTCHISON:

FRIEDMAN:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Probably the way that you feel about the Lieutenant Governor and where he ought
to be positioned.

Are there any questions on the overview?

Larry, this is Mark Hutchison. How does the attendance look and confirmations for
the summit?

All ten entities invited are participating.
Great. That's what we were hoping for.
Yep.

Okay, great, any further questions on Agenda Item {V E, Commercial Airport Summit
that's being held tomorrow in Las Vegas? All right. Larry, thank you very much.
Let's go ahead and close out that agenda itern and move on to Agenda Item IV F,
Sales and Industry Partners Update, Ms. Vecchio.

This is Claudia for the record. [ will turn this back over to Larry to provide a brief
update of the activities in his group.

The first one mentioned is the IPW, which is produced by the United States Travel
Association with Brand USA, the primary sponsor. It is an extraordinary
opportunity. The top buyers from all over the world come to meet with the
tourism industry of the United States.

Our activities started off the first Saturday with the Chairman's Circle Awards where
the 50 top buyers of U.S. tourism product are honored, and we are able to join them
and be with the 50 top companies who according to Roger Dow represent 75
percent of the travel into the United States from abroad. Christian Passink, David
Lusvardi and | participated on behalf of sales. Bethany Drysdale participated in the
media marketplace.

On the sales side, we had two completely full sets of appointments generated by
the marketplace. In addition we had a third set of appointments that we manually
added which were for people who also wanted to see us, people we wanted to see,
a meeting with Brand USA, meetings with our international reps who were in
attendance like Mexico, South Korea and China.

IPW, we had a record number of Chinese requests and a record number of requests
from India, but even from our bread and butter markets of Europe. We had great

20



VECCHIO:

FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism [ June 29, 2016
Departrent of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

appointments with those we've been working with for years, but it's also an
opportunity to talk about what's new in the state and offer new itinerary ideas and
new destinations for them to promote. IPW without question was a huge success
for not only us but | think all of the Nevadans who participated.

The European sales mission, we went in May to Paris, Amsterdam, Stockholm and
Cologne. We had 10 partners joining Christian Passink and myself. They were truly
from all over the state from as far north as Elko to as far south as Las Vegas, as far
west as Lake Tahoe and as far east as Ely.

All four cities had meetings with tour operators and evening events with travel
agents. | think that everybody would agree that probably the most remarkable
surprises came from Amsterdam and Stockholm where there was huge interest in
the entire state and the invited guests were extremely engaged.

In Amsterdam | will tell you that the tour operators were to come at 12:00 and their
time with us was supposed to end at 3:00. At a quarter of 4:00 | had to tell them
that we really had to leave in 15 minutes because we had to move on to our travel
agent event. Great interest and great statewide interest.

I'll let Claudia talk about the trade mission to Australia, but | will just mention the
LVCVA China Mission we'll be joining the LVCVA on the 10" of July going to five
cities and we will be joined by East West China, our new representation firm in
China at IPW. Not only did we have several meetings with them but we also had a
chance to sit down with the LVCVA and their reps in China to get off to a great start
of cooperation and working together in China.

In your commissioner packet there is a list of 2017 shows scheduled. | noticed that
there are three items in yellow and I'm assuming those are yellow because they are
events that we will be inviting partners to.

Exactly.

In addition to those partner events we will also invite partners to the Travel Agent
Exchange in San Diego in December. Also, invite partners to the Global Travel
Marketplace in May in Arizona and also to the Western Regional Red Carpet event
as weli. Those will also be partner events.

I would like to add to Rossi's question about Brand USA. Claudia and 1| both
participated in the Brand USA China Sales Mission. I'll be participating in their sales
mission in September which is our number cne lead generator for the state with
over 300 leads each year over the past two years.

21



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

You'll notice that at the bottom under miscellaneous, it says Brand USA Workshop.
Brand USA now has approximately 200 or depending on who you talk to, anywhere
from 150 to 200 products that we can take advantage of. Yennifer and | are
meeting and doing a Brand USA workshop in Washington, D.C. Actually it is going to
be taking place the first week in August, to really assess all the different things that
we can take advantage of.

In addition to the 150 to 200 products they offer we also want to take better
advantage of their value added program where we can purchase or do a promotion
with someone like Knutsa in Germany and with their approval they will add another
15 percent to the amount of money that we are committing to that promotion.

Both Yennifer and | expect great things that we will then be able to come back with
a recommendation to Claudia on future activities for the next fiscal year. Those are
my items. 1think, Claudia, 1'll turn it back to you unless anybody has any questions.

Any questions, commissioners, from the report that Larry's provided us on our Sales
and Industry Partners update? Any of those items that he addressed? Okay, Ms.
Vecchio.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. If | might just cover the Governor's Trade Mission
to Australia?

Yes.

The Governor's Office of Economic Development contacted us regarding an
upcoming trade mission the Governor will be leading to Australia the end of July,
first week of August. That group will be going to Melbourne, Sydney and Brisbane
and we've been invited to do tourism focused receptions, in Melbourne and Sydney
which we are glad to do.

We're working in conjunction with the LVCVA and great thanks to Rossi, Raphaet
and that team for your help on this to put together these receptions. We also have
the partnership of Cirque du Soleil who will be providing performers for those
receptions. They promise to be fun and engaging and a great way for us to promote
Nevada while we're there.

Our group at Canuckiwi has invited top tour operators, top travel agents, media as

well as airline partners. United will be partnering with us in those receptions as
well. | think it will be a tremendous way for us to create a great additional product

22



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

for a trade mission to Australia. That's what we have for Sales and Industry
Partners. If | might move on to marketing and advertising?

Please.

Thank you. The first item on there is FY17 Sponsorships and Commissioner Newman
can answer your guestions as we go through these sponsorships and how I've
organized that for this year. We've had a certain amount of conversation about
sponsorships and value of them. What | did with this recommendation was
different from the recommendations you received in the past, in that | put in the
Reno Air Service Corporation and the Sierra Ski Marketing Council.

We've sponsored these two organizations by being a member of these groups for a
long time. But, when | looked at sponsorships and the way that we provide money
out to these external organizations to promote tourism to Nevada, we don't
influence our overall brand, nor is it our own advertising and marketing. It seemed
like these two were lumped together into a reasonable grouping of the way the
money gets spent. That's why | put those two organizations into this sponsorship
recommendation.

The difference in the totals from year over year is, if you recall, there was $100,000
that went to Seven Magic Mountains last year. That was included in the
sponsorships. That brought us up to $181,000 because we have historically had
$100,000 in this line item.

You'll see this year it's $210,000 with the $60,000 for the Sierra Ski Marketing
Council, but that includes the $100,000 to sponsor the Seven Magic Mountains last
year. Vll just go through these and | know we have some representatives here and
on the phane who can answer questions.

The Reno Championship Air Races is an event sponsorship that many of you will
recall from several years ago. We have had a complimentary sponsorship based on
a major gift a few years ago which goes through 2016. This will be the last year of
our sponsorship through that original contract and you can see the benefit to
Nevada tourism is the international appeal and media coverage that we receive
either pre or during the event. We are thrilled to have association with these
international luxury brands. It has a remarkable link to the “Don't Fence Me In”
brand. You'll see a zero sponsorship level for this year. It continues to be a great
place for us to be.

Even though there is a zero sponsorship level on that, we put a certain amount of
money into those banners and into all the onsite collateral, so that's a little bit

23



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

misleading to say it's zero sponsorship. The money we give to that organization still
remains zero and we certainly appreciate that ongoing partnership.

The second piece that comes out of this is a program on NBC. We have Mary Beth
Sewald and Mike Crowell on the phone who can talk about this. The National
Championship Air Races has put together a program that's seen on NBC Sports. You
have in your packets a deck that provides an overview of that sponsorship.

We participated in this last year. It was put into the media buy section, but really by
definition of sponsorships, it has morphed into a sponsorship. You can see here and
in your deck, we have put our commercials in this broadcast. It is a national
platform for the Air Races, for Nevada and for the northern Nevada area. | think this
has some good opportunities for us.

You can see there are a couple sponsorship levels in here, one of which, the RSCVA,
has taken as a presenting sponsorship at the $75,000 level and then the one that
we're presented with is the gold sponsorship.

I will just keep going through these and then we can go through and talk if that's
okay. The Great Reno Balloon Race, and Pete Copeland's here and with us in Carson
City. Sponsorship level which we've been at the same for years is $15,000. | think
we went up from $10,000 at one point. Obviously this is the largest free balloon
race that's out there and it's an extraordinary opportunity for us to showcase the
brand. We have the brand on a graphic that’s on a balloon and that's terrific. We
do a number of promotional activities around that but, just another way for us to
extend the brand.

Red Rock Rendezvous we've done for several years as well. That is an event that
happens in Las Vegas in April. It's a great event for Millennials and we do
promotions around that as well. That's a small sponsorship and that's just a nice
way for us to continue to get our name out to that rock climbing group. It's a
popular event,

Then you have the two associations, the Sierra Ski Marketing Council, $50,000 is on
here, but that one had the membership had gone up to 560,000. Commissioner
Wagnon and | were at a presentation by the marketing team for this and they are
doing a great job in promoting the area through a variety of integrative marketing
activities so that continues to be a good place for us to put our money.

The Reno Air Service Corporation, obviously they are working hard to enhance air
service into northern Nevada so we would continue to be part of that. And then,
the Continental Cup, the Curling group. We did this last year as well. This is a nice

24



HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

VECCHIO:

SANTOS:

VECCHIO:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism [ June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

way for us to have some outreach to an incredibly rapidly fan group of curling
enthusiasts out of Canada. They come to Nevada at this great event at the Orleans
in Las Vegas and we do promotional kinds of activities to encourage them to come
back.

The last piece of this is collateral materials development at $7,000 and that's about
what it takes. What this doesn't include is staffing and the other things that go into
this and it is extensive, but the total then for sponsorships would be $210,000.

I know | ran through that quickly as well and there are people on the phone ready to
answer questions about these specific sponsorships, but | would respectfully ask
your approval for this and/or any questions you might have. Thank you.

Commissioners, what questions do you have on this agenda item,
Marketing/Advertising Update Fiscal Year Sponsorship?

This is Herb Santos. Question on the 550,000 for the National Championship Air
Race NBC Sports program. Do we have someone on the phone that does our
marketing and our buys? When you look at what you get for the gold sponsorship,
is that the best use of our 550,000 compared to just using it in our regular
marketing?

This is Clavdia. We have two very experienced people on the phone to be able to
taltk to this but from our standpaoint it provides us with some national exposure. We
don't generally buy national cable and this gets us to national exposure on that.
Plus the overall show itself gives us exposure for Nevada and for the northern
Nevada area.

If you look at the, you know, the ad equivalency is pretty high for this overall show
so | think as a community partner it provides us with a good way for us to get on
national cable in association with a program that is a good extension of the brand.

Well if I'm not mistaken it says from the TV shows it's not on NBC; it's on one of
their other channels so like CBS Sports Network, right?

Yes.
It says that 166,000 people watch this nationally and so my question is with a
$50,000 buy is that a good return? | see it as the other regular media and social

media, but looking at the people that watch that show, is that a good return on a
$50,000 buy?

25



CROWELL:

SANTOS:

CROWELL:

SANTOS:

VECCHIO:

RICHARDSON:

SANTOS:

RICHARDSON:

SEWALD:

RICHARDSON:

SEWALD:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Mike Crowell. 1I'm with the Air Race Association. If you look at the 166,000
people, the program last year was run on Easter Sunday at 12:00 so the timing was
not very good and we have worked very diligently with these people for this year to
get us in better time slots which will get us more people, you know, participating in
the viewing. It was our first time doing something like this and we were very
enthusiastic about doing it, you know, nationally and selling our state and so we
were encouraged and like | say, that was the first time, but we've gotten better at it
especially on the buying side.

Is there a date that's been set that it won't be on a day where folks aren't watching
TV?

The dates have not been set, but with the pricing we have some general parameters
of time lines like between 1:00 and 5:00 and 4:00 and 7:00. There are different
time lines and last year they understood that we were very unhappy with the time
lines. But, like | said, it was the first time we had done it and we learned a lot.

Herb Santos for the record. | would defer to our media experts on that. | don't
know if any of them are present, Claudia, who would be able answer the question of

whether or not this is a good bang for our buck.

There was supposed to be a Fahlgren representative on the phone. Carissa, are you
on the phone?

Yes, | am on the phone, and I'm sorry, | don't know that. | would need to take
another look at this. |s there any way for you to email that to me.

Sure.

That would be great.

If | may, Claudia and Commissioner Santos — I'm sorry.

Go ahead.

For the record, this is Mary Beth Sewald, President of Nevada Broadcasters
Assaciation, but I'm here today representing the Reno Air Race Association.
Commissioner Santos, | absolutely appreciate your question. | would echo what

Claudia said about a certain intangible value although | know we're looking for
tangibles and we're going to get that for you.

26



SANTOS:

SEWALD:

SANTOS:

SEWALD:

SANTOS:

NEWMAN:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

There is a certain intangible value though that we were able to enjoy by being seen
across the country, and then you saw the social metrics as well. As Mike said, we
absolutely have our arms around getting good quality time periods this year or and
pushing them through social media and promotion.

Without having the benefit of guaranteeing you or the ability to guarantee you of
certain, GRP or viewership, | think we can comfortably say that we are absolutely
moving forward with providing the best time period. It's in all of our best interests
and in our best interest for the event's survival and moving forward to get as much
exposure as we can.

For what that's worth | want to assure you that we are definitely pushing as hard as
we can to get the best exposure, and we'll provide as many numbers as we can
possibly get for you.

Herb Santos for the record. | will accept you as expert in the media, so | appreciate
that. Do you think those numbers will significantly increase in terms of how many
people view this and based upon your work on getting a better time period in a day?
Yeah, | absolutely do. This last year was Easter Sunday at Noon and we have gone
out of our way to make sure that we secure better time periods. As soon as we
have that we can pass that along to you and we'll be promoting it because we want
everybody to know when it is. For the record too, it's NBC Sports Network. I'm

absolutely confident that we'll promote it and we'll have better time periods and
with our social that will increase the viewership as well.

Okay. And it will NBC Sports Network, that's going to be on Charter Cable? Are they
on Direct TV, DISH Network, all the different cable companies?

Yes, they are.

Okay.

Mary Beth, this is Commissioner Newman.
Yes, please.

Have there been any discussions about possible rebroadcasts in addition to the
original programming? Will they rerun this multiple times or is it one and done?

27



SEWALD:

NEWMAN:

SEWALD:

VECCHIO:

SEWALD:

VECCHIO:

SEWALD:

VECCHIO:

SEWALD:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We don't currently have any plans to run this last one that we aired, but we have
discussed re-airing the future show that you are currently considering sponsoring.
But would you like for us to re-air it?

Well | think the more it can be broadcast, the better it would be for everybody.

Yeah, | agree with you on that. We do plan to do three shows over the coming
months and year. I'll mark that down and we'll talk about when we may be able to
re-air it.

Mary Beth, this is Claudia. Does it go on to their website afterward for viewing? Do
you know? Is there any re-viewing?

On NBC Sports Network?
On their website or on a digital platform of some sort?

You know it's not on their website currently but, we can definitely look into that too.,
I don't think it would cost us anything to ask them to put a link on it.

That would be great. The one thing so you know as well, is we ask that our
commercial not be put into the ongoing use of this program because of the rights
issues that we deal with, with the songs and the talent. That is an additional cost,
so when we budget for the use of this spot itis just in that one program.

Okay, that's good. | know you told me that, so thanks for the reminder.

All right thank you. Any further guestions on any of the sponsorships that have
been discussed at this point? Claudia, we've got $50,000 allocated in sponsorships
to the Reno Air Service Corporation and of course that's in addition to what we've
been talking about. What's the relationship there between those two entries with
National Championship Air Race and NBC Sports that we've been talking about, the
first item which is zero sponsorship level, the benefits of that, and then this other
item, Reno Air Service Corporation? What's the relationship there?

The Reno Air Service Corporation has evolved from a regional marketing group, and
their existence now is to work with airlines and the Reno-Tahoe International
Airport to enhance air service. They've gone from a purely marketing driven group
into very much a sales and business development group.

They operate differently from the events that we're talking about. That's an
ongoing group and | know Commissioner Cunningham sits on this. It is a group that

28



HUTCHISON:

SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

SANTOS;

HUTCHISON:

CARANO:

HAUN:

HUTCHISON:

GROUP:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

works to enhance air service and has a little different focus from the other entities
on this sponsorship list.

Got it. Yeah, that was my question. All right, any other questions? | guess
Commissioner Santos, what's your pleasure on the questions you'd had on the NBC
Sports Program?

I don't know where you are in terms of your satisfaction level and if you have any
follow-up to that if you want to have any further discussion on it or an evaluation of
that? | know that there's going to be some emailing going back and forth. Where
are you in terms of your comfort level at this point?

Well with Mary Beth, I've had a lot of dealings with her in the past and | look at her
as being expert in this area and she satisfied my concerns. Certainly this is
something that's an ongoing thing. You know | would hope to see some significantly
higher numbers next year in terms of what the viewership was, but I'm comfortable
with it.

Okay.

Thank you,

Thank you, commissioner. Are there any other questions or concerns befare | ask
for a motion? | don't want to have a motion until we're to the point where we're
comfortable and satisfied with the discussion and the analysis.

If anybody is not, please speak up now. All right, then let's go ahead and Chair will
accept a motion for the approval of Agenda Item IV G, Subsection 1, the Fiscal Year
17 Sponsorship as outlined by Ms. Vecchio.

This is Commissioner Carano, | move to approve the sponsorship package.

Commissioner Haun, second it.

We've got a motion and a second. Is there any discussion on the motion? Hearing
none those in favor signify by saying aye.

Ayes around.

Any opposed no? Thank you very much. Motion passes unanimously. We will close
out that agenda item and move on to the Spring Summer Campaign, a preliminary
report under Agenda Item G. Ms. Vecchio.

29



VECCHIO:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

RICHARDSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Carissa Richardson from Fahlgren is on the line
and she will provide a very brief overview. As you know we just started the Spring
Summer Campaign so these results are very preliminary but she's going to give you
an idea of where we stand at this point. Carissa.

Yes, for the record this is Carissa Richardson with Fahlgren Mortine Media Director.
So far, this is actually looking all the way back through November because we've
had some “always on” partners that ran. The campaign has actually generated
almost 89 million impressions. That's a lot of eyeballs that have been seeing the
advertisements and getting a good response.

2.7, almost 2.8 million people have interacted with the ad and that can be anything
from rolling over the ad to expand, clicking, watching a video, just moving around
and consuming the content that lives within those ads.

Then from there, there's also been 392,000 clicks generated through to the site
which has resulted in 92,000 page views, almost 93,000 page views on the site
which is a great number, but what's even better is that the people that are coming
through are spending over two minutes on the site which is a really long time.
They're visiting about 1-1/2 to 2 pages so they're clicking around.

Especially we have data that the Adventures that Sidney puts up on the website,
have been viewed by the audience as coming from the campaign 2,700 times.
These are really great numbers.

The campaign is also really contributing to a larger social following which is great
because then we can continue the conversation. We've actually had 3,172 new
Face Book fans just from the campaign alone. That doesn’t include any other
organic things that we're doing.

Our contents that we're doing in conjunction with the media partners has been
shared or re-tweeted over 2,800 times. This is really good exposure and not just
exposure but people are engaging with the ads; they're coming to the site, they're

consuming the content and they're learning more which is really exciting.

Great, Ms. Richardson, thank you very much. Any further update or is that the end
of the update?

That is the end unless there's any questions anyone wants me to elaborate on.

30



HUTCHISON:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you very much. Commissioners, questions far Ms. Richardson and this Spring
Summer Campaignh report? J've got a general follow-up for you, Ms. Richardson.
You say these are great impressions, numbers and interactions numbers, clicks
through and re-tweets and all that kind of stuff. When you say they're great
numbers, what are you comparing that to? What's your measurement there?

We utilize benchmarks from Google, kind of set travel and tourism industry but
desktop benchmarks. That's basically the average results that they're seeing for
advertisers in the travel tourism industry that are running across the nation.

For instance, interaction rate of the benchmark, which is the total interactions out
of all the people who saw the ad, is typically 1.26 percent and we're at 23.15. Well
above benchmark there.

As far as click through rate goes, same thing. The industry benchmark is a .07
percent which sounds really low but when you're serving millions and millions of
impressions it's actually a lot of clicks. Actually ours is at .47 percent which is over
six times the industry benchmark, so that's kind of where I'm gauging that from.

Then you said we've got about 3,100 new Face Book followers. Do we have a total
number of followers to our Face Book page?

I can look that up right now.

If you've got it handy, | just was curious.

Let's see here. We've got almost 132,000 followers.

And comparing that to benchmarks? | assume that probably depends on population
levels and that sort of thing, but how does that compare to in terms of the
benchmarks you're talking about?

They don't really have benchmarks for social followers just because it varies so
much by the type of place. Unforiunately, we don't have benchmarks for that.
Increasing the followers, especially by a thousand is always a good thing because it

gives you that opportunity to continue the conversation with people.

Right. Well thank you very much. Thank you for the good work. Any other
questions, commissioners, before we move off this agenda item for Ms. Richardson?

31



CARANGC:

RICHARDSON:

HUTCHISON:

CARANO:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

HUTCHISON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Cindy Carano. I'm thinking that the RSCVA, our Las Vegas Convention
Authority, might have numbers on their Face Book followers that you can compare
to.

Yes, we can certainly look at that.

All right, further comments or questions? Vice-chairman Carano, any further
comments or questions?

No, thank you.

Okay. Thank you. Last chance before we move on to our next agenda item. We'll
close that then Agenda Item IV G2 and move on to Agenda Item IV G3 which is Fiscal
Year 17 Planning Calendar/August 10 Marketing Committee Meeting. Ms. Vecchio.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. This is a continuation of the last agenda item with
the report of the campaign. We will be doing our FY17 creative planning and the
integrative marketing planning and will provide the marketing committee with that
recommended schedule, time frame, campaign components and an overarching
approach to FY17 at our upcoming meeting on August 10.

We'll be sending that to you prior to the meeting for review, so please take aiook at
that. We'll hopefully have a robust discussion about how we approach this next
year as there are some obvious campaign components that we need to work on.
We have some website issues we have to work on. We have some CRM
opportunities that need to rise to the top of the heap. There are a number of
things that we'll be recommending and providing to you as well as results, so you
know what's been successful, what we need and what we have challenges with so
we know how to better plan the upcoming year.

That will be coming to the marketing committee here very shortly and then once we
have that discussion and we have a good plan of attack for FY17 then that
committee will present that to the overall commission in September. We have a
September meeting because of the need to have quarterly meetings. We'll provide
that in September for the whole commission to approve and review where we are
for this year. | just wanted to let you know that's coming.

Thank you. All right, well that concludes Subsection 3 of Agenda Item IV G. Any
guestions, commissioners, on that agenda item or any other subsection before we
move off of Agenda Item G? All right, we'll close cut Agenda Item IV G and move on
to Agenda items IV H which is Public Relations Update. Ms. Vecchio.

32



VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism [ June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. Bethany is currently on a press trip with a group
of Indian media representatives so she's unavailable today to provide an update. As
Larry mentioned, she was also at IPW. IPW has a media marketplace that she
participates in that and as well as having ongoing meetings with media during that
great show.

You have in your packet the preliminary report of the Media Mission to San
Francisco. That was a tremendous event. You have the invitation as well as the
event overview in your packets. Qur partners at Fahlgren found a tremendous
location at the Zephyr Hotel, and what a great millennial focused property. We
couldn't have asked for a better spot.

We had tremendous media attendance and not only good numbers but really good
outlets like the Huffington Post. The group met with Spud Hilton and some very
important media representatives for us in that area. We invited partners and had
great participation from across the state of those who came out to support us there,
We appreciate that.

We had Clip Joli who's a chef here. We had a woman who is an artist do a painting
of Highway 50 which was given away at the end of the event. We had a wonderful
singer who did a great rendition of “Don't Fence Me In.” i was a very interactive
and fun night. Thanks to Fahlgren for doing that. We like doing these in-market
missions because it brings Nevada to these locations and we do so in an interactive
and fun way. |think everybody had a tremendous night.

Domestic Outreach and Media Coverage, obviously the team works very hard to
deal with domestic outreach. | don't have the media report to provide to you today,
but they've been doing some great outreach and we'll provide that to you here in an
upcoming meeting.

The last piece is Recent Awards. You have a press release in your packet about the
Silver Anvil award and | just have to thank the Fahlgren team for all their help on
this. For those of us in the PR world, this is a coveted award. Earlier in the year we
won some Bronze Anvils. The Bronze anvils are a national award for campaign
components, but the Silver Anvil really recognizes the entire campaign. This is an
overall program and which is why it's so gratifying to have been recognized for this
and it was for our program outreach to Millennials. | have to thank the whole team
for their woark on that.

Just at this last Reno Marketing Association Chapter Ace Awards we were entered in
three categories and we won all three which really we should in a regional

33



HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

GEARY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

competition. We won for our “Wild Night” television commercial, for our website
and then for social media outreach.

| hope that you all agree that the marketing team, the sales team, really | think the
whole team is doing an extraordinary job and it's nice to get these awards to not
only say it was a good campaign but the campaign showed great results. My thanks
to the team.

Well congratulations to the entire team. We know this is a big deal, the press
release was complimentary to everybody on the team, and it's a proud day for
Nevada that we have this kind of a marketing and sales effort that's recognized.
Thank you all for your great work, and commissioners, thank you for approving the
campaign and it's been successful, really on all fronts, and it's nice to get the
recognition.

Any questions on Agenda Item IV H, Public Relations Update. I'm hearing none.
we'll close out Agenda Item IV H and move on to Agenda Item IV |, Nevada
Magazine Update. Ms. Vecchio.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. | will turn this update over to Ms. Janet Geary,
publisher of Nevada Magazine.

Thank you, Claudia. Good afternoon, Lieutenant Governor and commissioners. This
is Janet Geary, Publisher of Nevada Magazine. Just wanted to let you know our
most recent issue of the magazine containing our fourth of our sixth Ghost Town
series is out on newsstands right now.

We also tied in this year's Silver State Scavenger Hunt using ghost towns as a
destination for the hunt, We've chosen 14 ghost towns from the north and 14 from
the south and we ask people to go to at least 10, take a selfie with our magazine in
front of one of the ghost towns signs and send it in. When they get 10, they are
entered into the contest to win a great prize from Land Rover.

We actually had our first person that submitted all 10 photos. They actually made a
three-day vacation and completed all ten locations in three days. You should have
received our Ghost Town Map in your packets, which was printed last month. We
have sold over 1,000 of our ghost town maps so far and are putting them in retail
stores as well as our subscribers are picking those up.

We also did a direct mail campaign. You should have received also a direct mail
letter in an envelope in your packets. We have just completed our fifth mailing and
so far have received over 400 new subscribers at an average of about 28 dollars per

34



HUTCHISON:

GEARY:

HUTCHISON:

GEARY:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

subscriber. They're still coming in at the average of about 5 to 10 per day. We're
getting a great response from our direct mail.

We also have launched our Great Nevada Picture Hunt search will which be coming
out in our September/October edition and we are receiving a tremendous amount
of photos already for the 2016 Great Nevada Picture Hunt. That's it from me.

Wonderful. Thank you very much. And | know that those Ghost Town Maps have
been wildly popular and | assume the Silver State Scavenger Hunt has been popular
as well.

Absclutely.
Based on that gauge, is that right?

Yes, if you go on Instagram you can actually see there are a lot of people that are
submitting photos. We had a huge response last year and this year we expect even
more people because the ghost towns seems to be such a tremendous subject for
everybody. We're starting to put more Ghost Town information on our website and
then with the Ghost Town Map and the Silver State Scavenger Hunt we're tying it all
together.

Wonderful.  Questions on Agenda Item IV 1|, Nevada Magazine Update?
Commissions, any questions? Okay, thank you very much. We will close out Agenda
Item IV | and we will move on to Agenda Item V, Upcoming Meetings. You can see
the meetings there on our agenda. Commissioners, please make note of each of
those. Ms. Vecchio, | don't know if you want to make any comments about
upcoming meetings?

I don't think we need to make any comments. Hopefully these are explanatory. The
full commission meeting on September 21, again is because we need to do a
meeting each quarter by statute. The fourth quarter is the October, November,
December quarter and because our conference in October we're going to have
meetings very close to one another there, but we'll make good time and good use of
both of those meetings.

Commissioner Comments

HUTCHISON:

Thank you. We will move on, close out Agenda Item V and move on to Agenda Item
VI, Commissioner Comments. Commissioners, open for your comments,
observations and words of wisdom.

35



SANTOS:

HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

RALENKOTTER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Mr. Hutchinson, I'm not sure about the words of wisdom but I'd like to just
congratulate our incredible staff and the Fahlgren Abbi team for its work and being
recognized together that it's the best travel marketing program nationwide.

| just want to put on the record and personally submit that we have an incredible
staff and | think it's the best of the best from our marketing to our Nevada Magazine
to Mr. Friedman and his universal fam groups, we're really lucky to have the staff
that we do. | just you to know you all make us all Nevada proud, and | want to
thank you for everything that you guys do.

Thank you, Commissioner Santos. | think we all echo your sentiments. We are very
proud and very, very honored to be involved with the teams that we have working
with us and it's nice, like | said before, to be recognized and | could not agree more.
Thank you for your comments, commissioner. Other comments, observations,
words of wisdom?

This is Commissioner Newman. Observations. I'd like to thank Reno in addition to
Austin, Wendover and Elko. We hosted recently the Great Race. It's a vintage car
road rally that is going from San Rafael, California to Moline, lllinois. They
overnighted in Reno with about 110 cars or maybe 115. By the time they got to Elko
it was down to 105.

These cars cannot be any newer than a 1972. The entourage traveling with them
was about 250 to 300 people so they lunched in Austin, Nevada, and overnighted in
Elko, lunched the next day in Wendover and then headed to Evanston, Wyoming,
and | don't know where they are now down the road, but it drew a big crowd for us
in Elko and was a pretty exciting event. I'm sure us being able in Elko to host that
had something to do with Reno being a leg in front of us, so thank you, Reno, for
your support.

| just have a question, quick question, back to kind of sponsorships. We did sponsor
Seven Magic Mountains, and | saw the vandalism was an issue down there, and
maybe Rossi or somebody in the southern side can update what's going on with
that, what steps have they taken or maybe at the end we promote an international
graffiti festival to wrap it up. What's going on with the Magic Mountains?

This is Rossi. Unfortunately that did occur. They are taking steps to eliminate the
graffiti that was placed on the exhibits themselves on the mountain part and
increasing some security in the area. They're looking at ways to prevent it in the
future. Like | said, it was just a very unfortunate incident. It was reported back by
some of the visitors to there and but they acted very rapidly to repair it.

36



HUTCHISON:

NEWMAN:

Public Comment

HUTCHISON:

SEWALD:

SEWALD:

HUTCHISON:

CROWELL:

HUTCHISON:

CROWELL:

HUTCHISON:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you, commissioners.

Sad but true.

Any other commissioner comments, observations, words of wisdom, anything else?
All right, I'm hearing none. Let's close out Agenda Item VI, Commissioner
Comments. We'll move on to Agenda ltem VII, Public Comment. First, anybody on
the telephone who would like to offer a public comment? I'm hearing none.

If | may, Lieutenant Hutchinson, I'm sorry. This is Mary Beth Sewald again for the
record.

| just wanted to say on behalf of the Reno Air Race Association a heartfelt thank you
to the commissioners. When the accident happened in 2011 you all stepped up
and have supported us robustly ever since. | could venture to say confidently that
it's mostly due to your support that we've been able to survive and now thrive. In
case we have been remiss in not expressing our deep gratitude, | just wanted to
make that known and on the record today so thanks very much.

Thank you, Mary Beth, you've already heard some expressions of appreciation for
you and for what you do and the confidence that we have in you as well, so it goes
both ways and we appreciate the great service to the state. Any other public
comments with anycne on the phone?

Excuse me, this is Mike Crowell and | can only reiterate what Mary Beth said, thank
you so much for your support. It's been a pleasure. Thank you.

Mike, thank you and thank you for being on the phone and sparing some time for us
and answering a lot of questions. We appreciate your insight and your candor with
us and we have a lot of hopes for the future and we put a lot of confidence in you.
Thank you.

Thank you.

Other public comments from anyone on the phone? Okay, anyone in Carson City?
Ms. Vecchio, is there anyone in Carson City that would like to make a public

comment?

There is not.

a7



Nevada Commission on Tourism | June 29, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Adjournment

HUTCHISON: Thank you. We'll close out Agenda Item No. VIIl and move on to Agenda Itemn VIII
which is Adjournment. Chair will accept a motion to adjourn.

WAGNON: Commissioner Wagnon, so moved.

HUTCHISON: Commissioner Wagnon has moved to adjourn. Is there a second?

SANTOS: Second. Herb Santos.

HUTCHISON: Commissioner Santos, thank you very much. Any comments on the motion? I'm
hearing none. Those in favor signify by saying aye.

GROUP: Ayes around.

HUTCHISON: Any opposed no. Motion passed unanimously. Thank you all for your time and for

your energy and your efforts. We are adjourned.

The meeting adjourned at 2:40 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism

3B



Reports

TRAVELNEVADA.COM % #TRAVELNEVADA






TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FUND (B/A 1522)
BUDGET SUMMARY
FISCAL YEARS 16 & 17

2511 Balance Forward From Previous Year (Beginning Cash Balance) 5,024,498 5,469,535
2512 Balance Forward to New Year {5,469,535) 0
3301 Lodging Tax (FY17 Projection as of 8/27/16 $23,750,419) 22,585,614 21,244,818
3700 Registration Fees 36,580 11,420
4203 Prior Year Refunds 1,799 0
Total Revenue 22,178,956 26,725,773
EXPENDITURES

01 Personnel Services 2,184,388 2,320,157
02  Out-of-State Travel 48,907 49,406
03  In-State Travel 37,520 43,496
04  Operating 302,126 312,996

Outside Postag 144,678 127,892

22  Trans to Nevada Magazine 50,000 4]
26 Information Services 73,314 99,610
30 Training 6,931 7,086

11,309,367

31 Marketing/Advertising 12,162,330"

1,650,000 1,400,000
or's Washington Office 108,511
International Offices 721,863 753,306
Tourism Development Grants 100,000 100,000
80  Lost City Musaum 191,312
61  Nevada Historical Society 247,695 318,397
62 NV State Museum - Carson City 706,871 861,785
63 NV State Museum - Las Vegas 655,678 750,832
84 ! F 424,791 989,564
65 A 908,145 1,224,753
66 ) sion 66,755
82  DHRM Cost Allocation 11,330 12,903
B7  Purchasing Assessment 7,563 18,102
B8  State Cost Allocation 170,505 160,285
89  AG Cost Allocation Plan 7,732 13,020
Total Expenditures 22,178,956 22,939,400
86  Reserve (Ending Cash Balance} 0 3,786,373
Total Expenditures + Reserve 22,178,956 26,725,773
Tourism Operating Budget 17,679,187 16,727,716
Total Transfers 4,499,769 6,211,684 |

*Additional tourism promotion funding due to incremental ledging tax, approved al the April 2016 IFC meeting.



.




Division of Tourism
FY17 International Office Representation Budgets

Advertising / | Annual
Promotion / | Service Total
International PR Subtotal Fee Contract
Office Sales PR {CAT 31) (CAT 43) | Amount
Germany 85,000 6,700 91,700 75,000 166,700
France 70,000 5,000 75,000 75,000 150,000
UK 70,000 10,000 80,000 70,000 150,000
Brazil 50,000 5,000 55,000 | 70,000 125,000
Mexico 79,550 5,000 84,550 | 75,000 159,550
Australia 60,000 35,500 95,500 70,000 165,500
South Korea 55,000 4,200 59,200 70,000 129,200
Canada - 50,000 50,000 60,000 110,000
China 70,000 10,000 80,000 { 118,000 198,000
India 65,000 10,000 75,000 70,000 145,000
TOTAL 604,550 | 141,400 745,950 | 753,000 | 1,498,950







NEVADA GOVERNOR’S

GLOBAL TOURISM
SUMMIT

NEXUS NEVADA 2016

October 11-12, 2016 (FAM/Press Trip Oct. 9-11)
Grand Sierra Resort

Agenda Overview — PRELIMINARY DRAFT

Tuesday, October 11, 2016
10:00 a.m.
Exhibitors allowed to set-up in exhibit area

11:30 - 2:00 p.m.
NCOT Commission Meeting
Lunch served

2:00 p.m.
Registration opens
Exhibit area opens

2:30 p.m.

Opening and Welcome Remarks

Lt. Governor Mark Hutchison

Reno Mayor Hillary Shieve {invited)

Jennifer Cunningham, Interim Managing Director, Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority
Tracy Minmo, General Manager, Grand Sierra Resort

Claudia Vecchio, Director, Nevada Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs

3:00 p.m.
Governor Brian Sandoval

3:15 p.m.
Global Tourism Trends
Richard Cutting-Miller

Executive Vice President at Resonance Consultancy Ltd.

4:15 p.m.
Millennial Chinese Traveler
Eric Fish

5:15 p.m.
Meeting Break

6:00 p.m.
Opening Cocktail Reception - hosted at/by Grand Sierra Resort



7:00 p.m.
Opening Dinner Event
U.S. = China Year of Tourism Celebration

Department of Commerce/Office of Travel and Tourism, Washington D.C.— speaker
Iconic Chinese entertainment

Wednesday, October 12, 2016

6:30—8:00 a.m.
Breakfast

7:00 a.m. - 12 p.m.
Registration

8:00a.m.

Opening Session

State of the International Traveler, Perceptions of Nevada
Dave Bratton

Destination Analysts

8:45a.m.
General Session - Panel: Issues impacting the U.S. brand abroad
s Lt. Governor Mark Hutchison - Moderator

= Jonathan Grella, Executive Vice President, Public Affairs, U.S. Travel Association
e  Mike Fullerton, Director Public Affairs, Brand USA
e Alina Xiang, General Manager, East West Marketing

9:45 — 10:00 a.m,
Morning Refreshment Break

10:00 a.m. — noon
Sales Marketplace

10:00 a.m. — noon
Media Marketplace

10:00 a.m. = noon

Building a Culinary Destination that Connects International Travelers With Your Destination’s “Sense of
Place” (Session 1 of 3) Erik Wolf, Founder, World Food Tourism Association (limited to 45 participants)
To be eligible to take the online certification exam, participants must attend all three sessions.

Noon - 1:30 p.m.
Lunch

Speaker, Jeff Salz, Cultural anthropologist, global adventurer, documentary producer for Discovery
Network and the History Channel.

1:30-2:30 p.m.
Division of Tourism Overview — State of the Nevada tourism industry, agency programs, China Welcome
program introduction, domestic international cooperative program Spring, Brand USA programming



2:30 p.m. ~ 2:45 p.m,
Break

2:45-3:30 p.m.
Breakout Sessions (three sessions, three separate rooms )

1. International Sales and Marketing — TravelNevada's International Program, Panel with Rep Firms
—Part One

2. Building a Culinary Destination that Connects International Travelers With Your Destination’s
“Sense of Place” (Session 2 of 3) Erik Wolf, Founder, World Food Tourism Association

3. TBD

3:30 p.m.
Afternoon Refreshment Break

3:45 p.m.-4:30 p.m.
Breakout Sessions {(same configuration as above)

1. International Sales and Marketing — TravelNevada’s International Program, Panel with Rep Firms
- Part Two

2. Building a Culinary Destination that Connects International Travelers With Your Destination’s
“Sense of Place” (Session 3 of 3) Erik Wolf, Founder, World Food Tourism Association

3. TBD

4:30 p.m. - Conference Ends



J

—

=2 =

L




FY17
Integrated
Approach

September 21, 2016

fahlgrenQmortine

NEVADA- sz

FY16-17 Strategic Plan

Drive revenue to the State of Nevada through travel and tourism activities
Raise brand engagement for consumers, travel trade professionals and

partners

Increase domestic integrated marketing campaign return-on-investment
Expand partner marketing and business development opportunities

Flw 314 5/514

s Pald Media ROl === ROI

1
Fwia1s O ss1s

U.S. TRAVEL

ASSOCIATION

"f‘r =2
W 15-16 ‘l' A
hsmai

fahlgrengmortine

Source Nevoda Advertising/Marketing Effectiveness Study, TNS




Communication Goals

* Convey “only in Nevada” DFMI experiences to our key markets and
audiences in an eye-catching way in order to:

Create relationships, encourage engagement and deliver an
authentic Nevada experience

Drive traffic to TravelNevada.com
Continue to build the overall Nevada brand
Increase destination consideration

Encourage new visitors to include Nevada in their vacation plans
while ensuring continued planning activity among repeat visitors

Drive tourism bookings

fahlgrengmortine

Geography & Audience

— Core Markets (DMAs)

— Video & Digital Support: Los Angeles, San Francisco, Phoenix,
Salt Lake City, Las Vegas, and Reno DMAs

— Digital Support Only: Boise, Dallas, Portland, Sacramento, and
San Diego DMAs

— National (PR and social}
- Audience

— Millennials
— Focus on adventure mindset

fahlgren@mortine

—/ O /3

J




Advenlure
Mindset

[
!
|
||
|

Crave inspirationf, <

Thirst for advenlure

Culturally Active

Discover for themselves

Active
Confident
Fosler and coltivate
Social relationships
Explorer

Personalization is eritieal

Resourceful

- ) re~—e e @ ijp——

DFMI 3.0




Used to Inform Evolution

Paid Performance — KPls and Optimizations
Consumer Concept Testing (2015)
IME Studies (Spring/Summer, Fall/Winter)
Website Usability Study
Web and Social Analytics

* Top-performing content/engagement
Stakeholder, Partner and Consumer feedback

Analyucs

Destination Q}Analysts "' Google

TNS

fahlgrengmortine

Key Themes and Insights

1. Surprising or unexpected scenery sells
— People still aren’t sure what's in Nevada beyond Vegas and Reno
Character approach is resonating
— Continue to skew toward raw/authentic/real
— Use for audience appeal, but not wayfinding
DFMI is strong — continue to embed as part of the brand experience
— Consider new ways to embed/add equity
— Stories/characters work at macro level; DFMI is transformative
Personalization/customization of content is key
— Shift from “buckets” to storylines
— Synchrony of content with media recommendation
~ CRM/email/automation
Planning content could/should be more robust
— Adventure content performed well, but can alienate if too extreme
— Invisible infrastructure via curated content

fahlgrengmortine




DFMI Evolution

FY15:
Introduction to DFMI

FY16:

Characters emhbodying DEML
spirit

FY17:

DFMI authentic characters
& experiences are front &
center

fahlgrengmortine

Logo Evolution

b
N EVAnAA WORLD WITHIN.
A STATE APAR.

fahlgrenGmortine




Logo Evolution

N EVAn AA WORLD WITHIN.
A STATE APART.

fahlgren@mortine

Traveler Journey

DREAMER ADVENTURER AMBASSADOR

PLANNER

*Focus more on planning stage in FY17

fahlgrenQ mortine




Broadcast — TV Commercial

Run Wild Night 100% rotation in FY17

—p=

fahlgrengmortine

The Hub: TravelNevada.com

HEVADA

iz G0 KOME WITH HORE STORIES
S THAN SOUVENIRS

PETI PNy S

fahlgrenGmortine

Main Homepage

Kelyey Owens,
Sculpture Artlst,
Reno, NV.

Video loap w.
showcose var
Nevadons end
adventur




The Hub: TravelNevada.com

Adventure Homepage

Bub Hutchinsan,
Mt. Biker,
Lake Tahow, NV

Videa loop will
focus on active
advertures ond
reol, odventure
seeking
ehgroclen

The Hub: TravelNevada.com

Nevada Insider Homepage

_——— g £ a

CEESTION  CALTING LRGBS

Kehiey Owens,
Antist,
Reno, NV

Video foog will
forurs on
Newartans doing
and making
amazing things




The Hub: TravelNevada.com

Nevada Road Trips Homepage

Ben Tucker,
Culture Enthuslast,
Vintage Vegas, BV.

Video loop wilf
showcase varms
roed (ip
snapshots ond
real characters
from across the
stafe

The Hub: TravelNevada.com

Adventure subpage

Rub Hutehinsen,
Mt Blker,
Lake Tahos, NV,

Video showcoies Rob's POVon
adventuiing in Nevada, Supportiig
videos wil gl be hoated in stider.

fahlgreng mortine




Hub Driver: Rich Media

|
| * ) wers naveichanned Com, Do Ee or 8

mmmumm;m

2016 Hawaii Sweepstakes
rter Dubyfer p Chanta te Wen $20,0001
e Bre g} e dord Frmaiet | ity Ml

BEGIN WHERE THE
BEATER PATH ERDS

RGLOSEA TN »
PRI K

Hub Driver: Rich Media

|
2016 Hawaii Sweepstakes.
Unter Dudy far 3 Chanca s Whn $13000"

RGLCYER D ¢
EEPIRINCE SERH

fahlgren gmortine




Hub Driver: Rich Media

Lweepstakes
. T L0 S0

NEW FIND GUT WHERE.

G
FIRL DR ID ¥
IFTRIE L

fahlgrengmortine

Hub Driver: Rich Media

i
L3 ) sewnciraveichannel comoesinatian s

LoniTUB  SHOWS  WIDED  DOTIMATIONS  SWEEPSTAXEDY

| 206 Hawaii Sweepstakes
Cmey Duby fod 5 Dhonca 14 Wi S13.20C7

e My Lvapon o Pkt || Taats

Bt Loy e an g " ok

#




Hub Driver: Rich Media

1
e £ 3 wewtraveichannet com.o:

2016 Hawati Sweepstakes
Erter Daky tet 3 Uhonta 15 Wi J1000C"

fahlgrengQmortine

Hub Driver: Standard Banners

FOR THOSE WHO'VE FOR THOSE WHO'VE SEEN FOR THOSEWHOVESEEN
IT ALL BEFORE

& &
@ SN BOCK BESEET R A

i S PLAN TOUR
S e

fahlgrenQmortine




e pmm—— ey

Hub Driver: Standard Banners

\MORE EASILY, EXPERIENCED
;:g ;_-.'1. A .._.'

Breaking Through: Disruptive Ideas

~ According to the IME study, every IMC channel boosts likelihood to visit
— Study indicates opportunity in key market - Los Angeles
— Don’t Fence Me In: use contextual appeal to drive recall

Every IMC channel boosts likelihood to visit

Likaty te Vialt Navada Cvernight in the
Fol[Winter 3015/3018




¥ ke

EC
: F o
1 f' 3

)
|

¥

fahlgren mortine

Always On Disruptor: LAX Activation

“FOR THE OPEN MINDED, - & o
NOHDERFULLY WEIAD AND =
GERERAL LOYE OF 00D,

TS RIGHT HERE.”
i st

HERL Lk )

fahlgren Gmortine




PR-Driven
Campaign

Message-Driven Approach: Core Content Areas

Evolution from “Buckets” to evolved storylines

— Character-driven stories, including originals and hard/soft
adventure

— Insider info.
— Social-first content

fahigrengmortine




i FY 2017 Public Relations

Master Content/Editorial Calendar
Character Storylines and Insider Content
Online Pressroom Revamp
Broadcast SMT
Media Tours in Key Markets
— Fall: Denver/Boulder, NYC
— Spring: Los Angeles, Boise
Los Angeles Event/Activation - Spring
Content-Driven Social Media Campaigns
— Offerpop
Influencer Program
= Chute
Iindividual Media Hostings — Key Targets
| Instagram Enhancement

fahlgrenQmortine

: Digital Ecosystem

Evolution




TravelNevada.com

— Enhanced content hub (based on usability study)
-~ Enhanced search
— Events calendar
— Homepage refresh

— Deep integration of social content

— Mabile app educational content

£0 HOHE VITH HORE STCRILS
i THAN SOUTENIAS

fahlgrenmortine

Hub Driver: CRM

nooB@2o

fahlgren{mortine



Paid Media
Recommendation

Traveler Journey

OREAMER .Iill ADVENTURER AMBASSADOR

PLANNER

*Focus more on planning stage in FY17

fahlgren @ mortine

1 O o ./ /| CO C.O e BE|E/}], /] /| o




P——

Connections Strategy

' Utilize data to make decisions for targeting, partnerships and content

I Continue to build on successful partnerships while exploring new
opportunities to keep the message fresh and increase audience reach

Incorporate partners that will allow us to increase our connection to the
audience while they are in the planning stage

Integrate paid, earned, owned, and shared media to ensure we are
surrounding the audience throughout their daily lives

! fahlgrenQmortine

Advenlure
Mindsel

Crave inspiration
Thirst for adventure 2
Culturally Active =

| Discover for themselves

- Authenticity is important 7/

. Aclive
Conlident
Foster and enltivate
SOCi:‘I ﬂ'llliﬂllhllipﬁ
Explorer
| Personalization is eritical
! Resourceful

\ . .
- Ll -
— . B - ]




Recommended Media Approach

— Support core markets with year-round media efforts in addition to seasonal
pushes during the key planning periods

— Core Markets (DMAs):

— Video & Digital Support: Los Angeles, San Francisco, Phoenix, Salt Lake
City, Las Vegas, and Reno DMAs

— Digital Support Only: Boise, Dallas, Portland, Sacramento, and San Diego
DMAs

fahlgrengmortine

e o e e e e e e

mﬁmmmm
L TP T T T LTI T it ittt it iT]]

B e T

[T IeAdad

a0




FY17 Media Approach

FY16 “Always On”
32% of Budget
National Niche Partnerships

=Lanely Planet, Travel Channel, Great
American Country

OTAs

«Trip Advisor, Expedia Network
Content Partners
=Matader

Network Partners

*Sojern

Search Marketing

*Bing

3 FallfWinter

31% of Budget

Video

=TV, Cable, Hulu

Digital

»Paid Social, Native, Content
Programs, Pre-rall Videa, Mobile

fahlgrenQmortine

*Details to be developed after Fall/Winter campaign ends

Spring/Summer*

37% of Budget

Video

*TV, Cable, Hulu

Digital

sPaid Social, Native, Content
Programs, Pre-roll Video, Mobile

Disruptor Out of Home
eEscalator Wrap — L A. [LAX}

41

FY17 Recommended Partners

/' FY17 Always On

\,

Gy i @ Expedia

Cz— ;
o R

{ SOJERN

N2

network

oINg

(FY 17 Fall-Winter

KINETIC

SHERPA| # KARGO travelspike

’ %uru hUIU Yeiearstre 2

\,

(FY] 7 Spring-Summer

Partners will be TBD based on the performance of portners during the Fall-
Winter campaign

-

fahlgren @ mortine




FY17 Recommendation Highlights

Travel Channel: Custom vignettes running within relevant programrming
designed to educate the audience about all the experiences they can have in
Nevada

Expedia: User generated influencer content and extended digital display
reach across the Expedia network which now includes Expedia, Orbitz,
Hotels, Travelocity, Hotwire, and Cheaptickets

Lonely Planet: Partnership will help increase exposure to audience in the
planning stage with custom content and microsite and supported with digital
display and print advertising

Matador: Extend our reach beyond just the Matador audience and also
reach the followers of outdoor adventure influencers through social media

influencer content
W2
e P

) aExpedia* Ione@plmet matador

network

fahlgrengmortine

Travel Channel Why Go? On Air Vingnette

fahlgrengQmortine




Lonely Planet Microsite

fahlgren@Qmortine

e =

Atlas Obscura Custom Interactive Map Ad

x,

DRSI6HT T0 160 1Y NEVABA
e - it

1 Vhid oeTeder 10 srarCl o

woenad 240t Roah g Swnt twn
NiipWDar

9 aean
I e mulile of b7 FAlie gy

unfrrzlag and dewpie Rghprert
1 the et srctet ooy tanlity g

g Demisispugn)
"¢ internationat Car Forest

1 Garasimy oo and el S combane L

<Teate U JEngy ef wTAE I e

4 Nevads leretdraB MCH il
4

fahlgrengmortine




FY17 Investment Breakdown

*Digital includes: Publisher Partnerships, OTAs, Content, Digital Audio, Mobile, Ad Networks, Digital Video
**TWincludes: Local Spot TV/Cable, National Cable, TV Everywhere
***Print includes: Lonely Planet

fahlgren @ mortine

MEGIA PARTNERS

orsrrz [EEH
Ocipedia tofidos

PAID DIEITAL
EARKED
t‘.&-— L
: T
: WSJ
STANDARD £5TODAY
) DIGITAL EXPERIENCE T
CRM DATABASE ; SOCIAL




U.5. Department of Commerce
International Trade Administration

quwi;
AR &
* %A
"~ " w

e National Travel and Tourism Office

Cultural Heritage Traveler




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

Overseas Cultural Heritage Visitors

[thous 1|111'~1|F\'~'|1nr~| 20K 2009 2000 1 2011 012 2003 20040 203 SIFIES

20152008

5369 16,815 118.294 9915 —

[ TRy : ; ["1! TR0 A V[ | [
- SN

G|

Country of Origin of Cultural Heritage Visitors

L EAERE R EERENELRE RN NN NXEEL NSRS NERSEENRENENNELSNSJ] (R R RN RS RN NN

| Market ' Market
i qur \L i Volume | lg]l.l & Volume
Visitor Ovrizi '-,:;;l_: 2014 .j:'-:l_t . 215!
- 2 S -
((00)

II'
(Percent) () {(Pereent)

Reglons ___

i

.I'IJ.||.||

LT o T _1" T
m--m——
.I. . - I




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

Main PurRose of Trip

. o Point
Main Purpose of Trip c .
Changet

Vacation/Holida
W s R s T

@JL\'HJI‘D)J*C( Gonleréntelates
Education

TG HIR en E
Rellgloanllgnmages

All Purposes of Trip

LA N RN RERNJ LA R RN N NN NES NN NN

2014 2015 Point
{Perecat) {’creent) Change®

Vacaton/Holiday I T

Business

Purpose of Trip (maliiple responses

[NV RE O NES Qe [ T T
Leisure & VFR ““

BUs ey Gorvention

Internationdgi Trade Adnunistration « Industry & Analysis - Nalional Travel and Tourism Office




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

Information Sources Used by Cultural Heritage Travelers to Plan Trip

2014 2015 Point
(Pereent) {Percent) Change

-_

Information Sources Used gt sesponses)

Transportation Used in United States by Cultural Heritage Travelers

‘.........I.-'.-.........O.....'.III.I.....I.l..lll...........l....ll...-....‘.IOUI.II.-..

Transportation Types Used in United States 2014 ‘ 2015 Point
tmultiple responses) i (Percent) | (Percent) | Change:

City Subway/T ram/Bus

Rentetliadio

Motor Home/Camper

International Trade Administration « Industry & Analysis « National Travel and Tourism Office




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

Activity Participation While in the United States

Activity Participation While in the ULS. 2014 2015 Point
tnultiple te-ponses) (Pereent) {Pereent) Change

mu-\luullfi”huuu’ Hali
Guided Tours
Collerm e e e A | [ o '
Concert/Play/Musical -2.3
(Do) BBt ZBE e e
Sporting Event

Water Sports “ 11 -0.1

Wternational Trade Administration « Industry & Analysis » Nattonal Travel and Tourism Office




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

U.S. Destinations Visited by Overseas Cultural Heritage Travelers

Markel : Market

Share Volume v G
Visitation to LS, Destinations/Begions (4) "li.l-l 20147 ‘-,0‘1_-‘ —
4 (000 et (000)

(Perecent) {Pereent)
————
. MrddlsAdEEG 40 18394y L5898 HE

South Atlantic 31.30
e L g ik e RN
Mountain 17.40
(L Rantolslands ‘
East North Central
L NeWIBDEERT
West South Central
~ AWERENORhG Sl
East South Central

17.83
I REEI

(3008 [ |

Hawaii

£y _EMF fofy I.I'1 111 LL 11E]

Ilinois

| ReinSEE

New Jersey

..continued

International Trade Administration - industry & Analysis - National Travel and Tourism Gffice




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

U.S. Destinations Visited bx Cultural Heritage Travelers (continued)

(B A RN RN R NERNEERENREEEENREESENEENNRE R NN SEREP DO PPIRREN SR RAORBOBANISTOOPRTARRRERERGABRRRSE

Market A Marlket fi
- Voleme Share Volume
Visitition to VLS. Destinations/Reyions (4) "(}'”L 24 h’{)‘H 2(H A"
x non iy 00
{Pereent) {IEL (Pereent) ( )

Cities
RN GiT
Los Ange]es

San Francisco
Orlando

Boslon
Gl Uk o)
Chicago

L SElDfcae .
Flagstaff/Grand Canyon!Sedona

|EEISEETIS A

Philadelphia

DEIGtEKeysE
Atlanta
I ETG0Ston

Ft. Lauderdale

International Trade Administration « Industry & Analysis « National Trave! and Tourism Office




2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

Select Traveler Characteristics of Cultural Herltage Travelers

(A AR R RN RS NN ER RN AR RN R N RN NN NN R RN NN RE RN R ERN R E RN RN RN REENR YRR A NN NN ] LA AN AR XS NERNNNT]

Traveler Charavieristics 2014 205 Change (3)

pAdvi T Decns:on Time (mean days) -IE-

VR _ A
Travel Parly Slze (mean # of persons) -_“

Household Income (mean avera c) $89 490 $83 881
r. b

I| ‘
AvcrageA
..'!f..._\'_ L

NOTE: A cultural-heritage traveler is defined as having part cnpntcd in onc or more of the l‘ol]owmg activities: An GallcryIMuscum, Con
cert/Play/Musical, Cultural/Ethnic Heritage Sites, American Indian Comemnunitics, Historical Locations, and Nationa! Parks/Monu
.ments. The wording changes make the past 20102011 cultural heritage profiles not directly comparble to the curreat profiles, but
“both are a combination of the cultural heritage tm elers. T

(3

(L) 2015 arrivals and percent change reflect a combmntmn of additional records counted and market conditions.

i b

(2) F.xcludcs Cnnudn ond Mexico .

(3) 'Pcrccntngc-pmm and pcrcenlnge clmngcs are ‘based on non-roundcd data;

; e T '

(4) ‘Only Tegio slntc, um:l c“?s shnuhonsl_:rgvingq“_ le'size of 400 o m';mnrcm d:sp _gycd

: Due io:qu yd%‘tn ﬁt‘l mg %':;y_ny Pp‘rfﬁfeqp?é‘mcu cgd_é‘s'igm |5"h" h_‘_
4 '_:i. d

£y » LJ-L b
(r) n}Eslunale wns rev e =
¥ e */"':’1‘ "~"-'~,*{i..r* o '%iﬁr?'?'” Ry i ek
© --r-f-mﬁ;,maapregmi-@gimhbjcw it
I This file shoy s.only.a poi (LW‘
Addnﬁ%al |nihm d'|?iay

TR

- ?il'l-_'l.“'ﬂ vy A
e

>



2015 Industry Sector Profile:

Cultural Heritage

Survey of International Air Travelers

‘The Survey of International Air Travelers provides alevel of detai) and insight into the traveler characteristics and
travel patterns of international visitors to and from the United States not found elsewhere. Respenscs are weighted
with data from the Department of Homeland Sccurity and the following thirty-seven tables are then populated. This
report, which was constructed using just a fraction of the data available, summarizes what we know about the overseas
traveler who visited cultural heritage sites while in the United States.

Survey of International Air Travelers: Table Number and Description

Table l Co of Remdence Table 20 | Number of Destinations Visited

L Llj_b ot ”It‘_llh‘]tle)lltllullll[llﬁ_l_[- W)

L bl b : : "--";. \"UI! I‘L\memt

Table § Means of Bookmg Alr Tl'[p Table 24 |U, S Destmallons ned
[mtie e el RN e )

Tabe7 | Prepald Inclswe Tour Packge Table 26 Total Trlp Expendltures

THEE Y e RraRe ey

U UENOY

Table I] Pa ment Methods Expen Welghtcd

Tnble 17 FlrstTrlp to (heUS Table 36

International Trade Admintstration « industry & analysis - National Trave! and Tourism Qffice




Interested in obtaining data for your organization?

One of the unique features of the Survey program is its ‘data-mining’ potential. The Sur-
vey research data, collected from the questionnaire, is maintained in a computer data-
base. Therefore, customized reports, special tables and data files are available.

To learn more, go to: http://travel.trade.gov/research/programs/ifs/index.html

For NTTO programs of interest visit:

hitp://travel.trade.gov/research/index.html

Summary of International Travel to the United States (1-94)
U.S. International Air Traveler Statistics (APIS, formerly 1-92)
Survey of International Air Travelers (SIAT)

Canadian Statistics

Forecast of International Arrivals to the United States

U.S. Travel and Tourism Exports, Imports and the Balance of Trade
U.S. Travel and Tourism Satellite Accounts

U.S. Department of Commerce
International Trade Administration
Industry & Analysis
Nationai Travel and Tourism Office
1401 Constitution Ave, NW
Washington, D.C. 20230
Phone: {202) 482-0140
Fax: (202} 482-2887
ntto@trade.gov

http://travel.trade.gov

International Trade Administration « Industry & Analysis » National Travel and Tourism Office




|oco'oe

00°005'0Z S

*suoIssasdw)

aaua4end 000'SLB'T/000'9
‘udiedwes uoljesauad
J)JJBJ3 JUSILOI HIDIM XIS

£102 yiew - ga4

JW elpy|

oo¥‘zy

00'008°02 )

*$3)jaudia 3ynu|w 7 pue sposida
AL 9anuiw-gT T ‘Buisnuzape
jupd Yy ‘'uBiedwed ejpaw
|eros pue [e)dip yuow £

L107 3uny - Aepy

JW BUIYD

055595

0005812 S

‘uojiesauald

2)}JBJ) JU3U0d pue pe aded JjeH
*da]s wollIe 0] ||eD PazIWOISN
e yym udjedwed [ey3ip yoam ¢

L10Z aunf - Judy

JN Bljessny

rooo.mw

00'005°01 S

*$)10)8 pauoddns ysn puesg
Yim 3nsodxa Jno adueyud o

LT0Z 3= - uey

aded ysn 09

000°sS

00°09€'LT S

"$1934BL |EUOlIBUIRUI

3|qEN|BA JSOW B3 WO SIONUSIA
Peaye 0} |00} ¥ 'sadendue|

£1 UJ p31ejSuely Si pUe $3LIUNod
ualap wouy sjuade |anes)
adiynw o3 3no 5508 aping ayl

LT0Z 390 - uef

apihg uonendsu)

ﬂlﬂ.ﬂ.l{f&ﬁnrdﬂgi
L 3
. wopuelne

LL'625'902 S

9102 ‘¢ ‘Iny aouejeg Jupue)s

{aunr) YOSTS E10Z Ad

{1das) N0STS ¥10Z Ad

{1sn8ny) %0SE$ S10Z Adl

YIUOW PUE JUNCWeE <O.__

wsunoy jo juswiedag epeaay

SAHINNOD 13948V
B e

“HINNVYTd ADILVHIS

vsn pueig

usare,

¥E0



000'05% 00°008'61 {z) soapip a8enueq u)
adl BSIAB|E)
agl e|paw 150d
asi uonen |gaes)

005'0T 00°000't |EWINOT EJLIBWY

iy anjea | ouddy B ; ! EENSY .. i ] PR DRI BT m

189°79£ 00'ScETOC o1

Juawa3edua
5L8'8S 00°5Z9'eT pue yaeas J2Wwnsuod
puedxa ‘soapia adensue|
w1 01 3iyyeJy palylienb axesauag| 710z 73Q - uel [ELEREY ple}]
"EPEAIN JO 3Bpa|mou)y
00°000'2 Jiay) uo paseq adpeq e uiea
|lilM pue Suiuies) VU SAISUIIXD afed
ue jo Jed aq pm sioiesadQ tnoj LT-uer 28peg Auaaoasi(g pauleluiey
000’8 00'000'9 UOISSII S3)ES BIPU| SN puely g1-das uoIssiiy elpuj
‘sladJew
£ 044 513119)5MaU Apjaam
£ pue ‘suoissaiduw Fuisiyaaape
looo'vLe 00°0000T ‘sAe|dsip au01s Buiaey Aq
{IBSIIN0 BIUUI||IL JNO BIUBYUD
Jitw uSiedwes ay) ‘siajaael) 1102
|EIUUAJ|IW BJE SJIBWNSUCD 1S | 3das -9T0Z 120 w15
‘[aaed] aiay) uejd s1auwnsuol
BIUM JILUNSUOD 3L JO JUOIy
97846 00005'ZZ w suonowoud epeaap Bupoe)d
‘ejep Auted 1501 OO0 SeWOY )
yum uoiauniuod uy wiojeld L1002
Buiajiew [uueya-3nw mau | 1das -910Z 120 30O SEWoy
*SUIBLYD BLUSULD)
000'vT 00°002'T1T 1598919 sAUELWIBY YiIm YIuow
auo Joy Suis)LaApY BWAUD pajwnun sy
WA NOA
000°0S 00°000'5Z 5y EJUAWY 19 SAEPIIOH WA
u0i3Ie 0] (B3 B Y3m uoizauniuod
Ul [ELI01BADE EPEABN LT-Aew! ydesdaja)




JOURNAL

Lg-X4 oA [ £ 01 7} 4l & e s, a&IT

S

(LR

=ia e

RETNY.

Al

CITY SFOTLICHT

Vegas Ventures

Cas'nos are just one source of entertainment
in the descert destinaton. From celebrity
houses to fitness b gh above the city, Yepas
rcally does have somcthing for everyone.

Elevated Yoga

» Per‘ormirg a tree pose of

dowrezrd-facin g dog 2t 55¢ feet Vesas Nets
in the 2ir is now possible thanks NHL Team

to ere-hour yoga sessions being » loe v [anen dy in

210 drsert This

offzred on the High Fol'er

sLrries, e el L
Obzanvation Whesl. touted as the announzed ot Lis
13 lest such wree! is the warld, Vopasw Dy come
Call 7023220537 0« visit cuesars, Al eRd AR CGA1D

, :urlmg_ 1M Tec
coi fengfhigh-ral e, —Tper Rl YIF 20013 eezmen

Suetet Crour

Bri gllrt
Boulders

wInthe wir pahiYalley,
south of Las Woghs,
sover toares of paintod
bavider: rize to Feights
ol 30 to 75 et The
lirrweats <2 pivens
stackees i vantinus
areangeeents af
Frorzsce=: 3nd messllic
tulors —ais a2 arlist
Ugo Rowad rove's S2wea
Mogis Mourtaing

ingsa et which wlt
br shea— teragh

flay 222 Gall
773-325-3355 visil Sevzr o zpictnvbe Lires eom. —Meopaa Weke

Touring Wayne’s World
They dos’t call Wagne Nowior “MR. LAS YIGAS® for
nothing—2016 marks the s&th year the croancr has
performed in the city. Kow visitors can 2air irsights about
the 74-yezr-cid enterta ner by tourinz the 52-acre estase,
Casa dz Skenandoah, where Mowton ived antil recent's
Tours range from $12.55 16 55 for out-cl-town visitors
ard gram different levels of access

The praparty. whick s ts southeast of McCarran
Internazonzl Alrport, is 2 15-rminute czb ride from mos:
Strip hetels. Each lour begirs in the sasitor eantar, whare a
videu cheoeicles Newlon's eatly years. Mos! lours tent nue
Lo @ maseurn of Newton's mamorabiba. On display is
sveryteng from Newtoa's tasseled s'age costurmies 1o the
Bendeys ond Rolls-Rovees theel miske up Newtun's claasic
tar collestian,

Inadditon to extersiee CD und i rographices and TV
tredis, H=wton is knoan 25 one of the evctld's foremest
cal'eciers und bresders of Arubiur hoerses; sorme tours
shaweate Casq di Shemandoah’s stablec Gunxis might
get 1o mezt the singer's capuchin monkey, Bop, or be
invited to a <hndad paddoce to watch *5= horses sun

The more sxpensiee tour5 end in Hhe mansion, whers
gutsts can marvel at 3 aysral pool rable, ezrate wrosgrt-
fror staircases, und Noeaton's affice, complete with a desk
once oatsd by Frantn Delano Roosevs 't

When |zaving Casa éc Shenandosh. the best way to
txpress gratitude for 3 wenrwhile tour mighs bz 1o oroon
the chorus of Newiton's carcer-luunch-ng *g43 single.
Darnke Schorn, —Mait Viano

4MULT 010 ALASKA BEYOND AGaZint IS







Hational T
%ﬁ Illsmrlcl'm ationt Drscorvpn = D Werk -

Take Actioh -

Srcli - |

Bas:q ue Cduntry; US

How Europe’s Most Original Ethnic Group Transformed the Culture of 1daho and Nevada

f 1mame W sHaRE P &

P AL Todri—urdoutisdiyore s belkeanr ial et
asonrd e~ encarple Ragrern iy mrefaerses AlrEmed e dinannEireT g n g
PInEey W e laien oo diratt et ioencla

Curtr, FEuzege e s




Inths 33rn 2rd Z00r o2 er 35 ssy Bazqusa 'ghtlhe v aormaiznd romaci ol bEmer it urEr o b atnr s SF e Anze o Lisamter Spatin

erncarts m3EETiee Ll AMSrca ot I1IontegLsrT oSt s args Besguedsizara rarizaan s r Cn 279 drgentns

The gzt ro=oee ofBasque-Amed Jars ' vss B 23 “If s Dotahgnoorlammat o car pas os fooedr deagsod Mevade e Brigues 1t en

B E32 S& IMRr T P T su T of taosa tas e tFor felt Altzugn O g 2td Sroentira Faon tis arger Basgue o 2icars rahes T2

ro=ery Brrs bnars Rastre ngnsit coscenston Sfpasp e ofEsGLe 205

hardztors SR8 D00 st da tee Fyeneest

Soow g romoen of Sasmesrbegin tasett s revd r e TRrS cormry o rQ OF ahSt T8 O T DEST LR o SACRED SRR

aha Tsropmds

cvadadhor m@ Al certury ' 220 U3 8 3 LUEN I ORI NIMESE Sy 1eEEd LTS

fe niaa;

Se 4o e Zasnpee bt rihe ot e PHel BC s STE TSI L0302 /Tu P su D ST

T e s ol

Exseesin,earsrs 220 dorng v th acz sceromtade o dmieimndBricaa sas e 1 zenadl

AporrErafray serttnath onegts Bo te s Barque nertsce s me faan dsy 75 Ig9 LsifLoy Ty thiz Batgue ourde oftire girmoraze Tes

23 el g asscompare™ wiin Matsce 2orsied and ngh ghs e Basquss mrac ouscorvacier s i trar Cukols S in

cutibssgrviER s peoraroes o0 ia SArcel CTmiliUostient arooi”




<43z i F1ichr L0 BY R XD T 8

- 7. basque 29 3aroner.ills 1T see T2 Tar. CIBI8I 19 RALSSE AneIf yIy £AT B313.% Laam PIFTel 892 147 47%n «23°80 Ooam w1ty
Shir
M heaad; f SEs e MA T CoR iR 2ozt Tr SF g BRIl BT 1npan-ard i B L - - BrgroLier dFdomeir anug
agrder icr iy 4 ovEroei e Trg. resiadrc ey TTE LR A PRI P e ErtE O Nl TN 9485 LT Ne — o

el O - ! cegnir 3 Tody, ~ar, 3 fanedi ccaiBrgueciisre 33

% L=t Ll R e
[t ki kil Lol 3k
eme it bert i g Nl g 2 IFTE FIodeing B TR0 pa Madke 5 L orree0sd 305 T Bacrge -
Coccer e Baryd oo rog 1 oeiie-ted o, parg 2aa L Ie R phe 2 Ceipe e dTerih T80 Toowa faciad e moone B e e 2 s
- v m v g Bgww wopgins gres 4 a zun |
34 LnpTring e g ng T8 -1 =LA e el Tt | AH N T o gl e




STEPHEN SARS FHOTOGRAFHTIALAMY

Elko, Nevada

AS FALL DAYS turn crisp in the Ruby Mouncains, glaciated valleys burst with
quaking aspens, their leaves shimmering in shades of saffron, lime, and crimson,
Neasby Elko provides a high-spirited gateway to this cowboy-friendly land.

o'The California Trall Interpretive
Center focuses on one of the largest
migrations in United States history,
when 250,000 people —pioneers and
prospectors—crossed the continent.
Interactive exhibits of clothing, pames,
and tools testify to the ingenuity
needed to travel in covered wagons.

© At the Western Folklife Center,

you can listen to little-known record-
ings of cowboy singers and poets. This
coming year, from Jan. 30 to Feb. 4,
the center hosts the National Cowboy
Poetry Gathering, an annual event
celebrating the verse, music, and
stories of ranch dwellers,

&8 The Guerrilla Craft Eats food truck
serves organic, seasonal fare. Try

the roasted pork sandwich with rye
whiskey barbecue sauce and apple-
kale slaw, a regular on the menu,

& Winding through the heart of the
Ruby Mountains, Lamoilie Canyon
Scenic Byway follows 12 miles of ter-

rain that glaciers spent centuries
scouring. Hike the gentle Lamoille
Canyon Narture Trail to see high
cirques and shining pools left behind
by ancient ice. At the end of the byway,
you can explore the back-country

on the popular 3.7-mile round-trip
Lamoille Lake trail or the steeper
3.8-mile round-trip Island Lake trail,
Spy mountain goats on rocky ledges
through a scope.

& The hamlet of Lamoille, with its cot-
tonwoods and iconic steepled white
church, is a pretty remnant of Nevada's
self-reliant Old West. Giab a burger
on the porch at O’Carroll’s and watch
the ranchers and motorcyclists rub
ethows at the pool table inside.

aCowboy Joe Coffee in downtown
Elko serves espresso drinks around
awoodstove. You can peruse local
photography or browse The White
Fzwn, the latest children’s book by
Lamoille’s Karen Collett Wilson.

—LAURA READ

Weatherieclh’

American Manufacturing Done Right/

i "Laser Measurag
FioorLiner®

e =

See our full line of automotive
accessories at WeatherTech.com

CargoTech® |
Cargo Cgrgta_{qrpé;rj( Syster [2

e d e

SPECIAL OFFER!
Mention this ad & SAVE

WeatherTech.com

800-441-6287

= Proudly Designed, Engineered
==== and Manufactured in the USA

(] [ZE]

Canagian Customears European Customers

WeatherTech.ca WeatherTechEurppe.com
10 2018 by Machisll P LLE




Public Relations—Driven Integrated Domestic Marketing Program

Damestic Media Relations

® In August, staff conducted deskside meetings with Denver-area media. Appointments were held
with:

5280

Go World Travel

Denver Life

Climbing

Freeskier

Backpacker

Mountain

American Cowboy

Multiple freelance writers writing for a variety of publications including the New York
Times, CNN’s Great Big Story, Newsweek, Nation Geographic, Slate, the Denver Post,
and AAA magazine.

00 000O0O0O0OOQO

* InSeptember, staff appeared on three Salt Lake City morning shows to promote the Great Basin
National Park Astronomy Festival, held Sept. 29-Oct. 1. Interviews were conducted on KSTU Fox
13's Good Day Utah program, KTVX ABC 4's Good Morning Utah, and KUTV CBS's Fresh Living
program.

¢ Planning is underway for deskside meetings in New York in October, and we will be planning a
large-scale media event in Los Angeles in the spring.

¢ Matt Long of Landlopers.com visited Nevada in August/September to write about roadtripping
in Nevada. The website receives 1.4 million unique visitors annually and 1.82 million page views
annually. It has more than 150,000 followers across socia! platforms. Matt wrote about his
travels on Landlopers.com and shared his experiences socially.

] Manlong -

=1 The International Car Forest of the Last Church Geldfield Nevada
[FHOTQ] landlopers conv2015/09/12/pho .. #NzvadaTravel #Nevada
#ar #tot

| The Intermnatlonal Car Forest of the Last Church, Gol..

 Phato of The Intemationat Car Ferest of the Last Church
wne| N Goldfeld Nevada

Driving the Extraterrestrial Highway in Nevada:
What You Need to Know




Other domestic media coverage garnered in the last quarter include:

e Seven Magic Mountains in Alaska Airlines inflight magazine, a result of a deskside meeting in
April.

e Nevada's Basque culture in Preservation magazine, the magazine for the National Trust for
Historic Preservation, a result of a deskside meeting in December 2015.

e Renoin Endless Vacation magazine

s Elko in Via magazine, a result of ongoing pitching and hosting of a Via travel writer.

e Reno and beyond-Vegas attractions included in Southwest Spirit’s Nevada section, a result of
ongoing pitching of travel writer.

e Great Basin National Park on National Geographic online, a result of a story pitch:
hitp://www.nationalgeographic.com/travel/top-10/10-naticnal-parks-should-need-visit/

International Media Relations

o Bloggers from www.littlegypsy.fr (France) traveled Nevada in September from Reno to Gerlach
to Ely to Las Vegas. The blog receives 10,000 unique visitors/maonth and each web visit lasts
approximately 3 minutes, so we know that the content is compelling and capturing its readers.

ﬁ? LitleGypsy . | 9 new photos
T ; A

Le Nevada pour cléturer ce voyage ()

Non parce quon parle tout te temps de Viegas mais le Nevada c'est aussi
les réserves indiennes |a zone &1 |a moitie des chevaux sauvages
d'Amerique [es villes fantdmes les vrals cow-boys 1a route la plus
solitatre 12 burning mar des gens d'une gentillesse incroyable les
paysages a couper le soutfle  Je continue ?

Du coup |e me suls dit qu'avant de rentrer, c'était bien assez sutfisant pour
faire "le Mevada en s'amusant” #DanseDe  See More
See Translaton

g
‘,




s Aviareps, our representative company in China, issued an events-facused news release to
media. (example included)

* Two travel writers from Australia and New Zealand visited Nevada in September on assignment
for Let’s Travel Magazine and various other publications including Escape Travel in the Sunday
Telegraph, ABC Travel, and Brand USA publications. They visited Reno, Lake Tahoe, Tonopah,
Ely, Great Basin National Park, and Las Vegas. Let's Travel is a luxury travel publication that
prints bimanthly and has an online audience of 40,000 unique visitors per month.

Discover Your Nevada

Recap of program:

Discover Your Nevada is an annual campaign designed by the Nevada Division of Tourism to stimulate
in-state travel among Nevadans. The national average for in-state travel is 51 percent. However,
Nevada's in-state travel is only 6.7 percent, meaning that most Nevadans are traveling out of state for
their weekend getaways and vacations.

This year's campaign will feature six road-trip routes. When travelers drive these routes and “check in”
at a designated point on each route via Twitter, Instagram or Facebook using the hashtag
#DiscoverNV16 and posting a photo or tip for that location, they will earn $1 for the Field Trip Fund.
Each traveler could earn up to $6 for the fund by traveling each of the six routes.

The Nevada Department of Education will conduct an essay contest open to eighth-grade students in
Nevada. The essay topic will be determined by the Department of Education and will be related to
travel. The writer of the winning essay will be awarded a field trip in Nevada to be scheduled toward the
end of the 2016-17 school year. Depending on how much money has been generated during the trave!
period, the fund may be used to host the winning student's entire class on a field trip.

Travelers must check in at the approved check-in locations identified in the routes on the Discover Your
Nevada website. There are six routes and each has one check-in location. We understand that cell
service is not guaranteed in each of these locations, and will accept nearby check-ins if the spirit of the
campaign is maintained. Check-ins must be on either Facebook, Twitter, or Instagram. Facebook users
must go to Facebook to submit their check-ins. Instagram and Twitter users must include the hashtag
#DiscoverNV16. All check-ins must also include either a photo of the location or a travel tip related to
the location. The purpose of this is to use each check-in as inspiration and education for fellow travelers.

Results:

The emphasis this year was on Nevadans actually taking the initiative to travel rather than to just
educate them about the state. We expected a low number of check-ins as it’s a new version of the
campaign, and getting people to actually get in their car and explore takes repeated effort and incentive.
We had more than 100 check-ins, which means that more than 100 people took the suggested road trips
and made the effort to check in using the campaign hashtag.

The best results are the anecdotal ones, like Catherine Odgers from Ely, who learned about the
campaign and took it as a personal challenge to trave! all the road trips in the campaign.



Travel NV #DiscoverNV16

Lrdrl heid o op =55 50 b

Being born and ralsed In Mevada and as a member of Navada Stale
High School Rodeo Assotiation for many years | have traveled the
roads o* Nevada and have found many treasures along the vay Sut
even &ith constant traveling there are still somethings | haven't seen
S0 my mother and [ took 10 the #TkscoverNY 16 challenge and expiored
lecal and far off vwonderlands! f challenge you to go out and find
lreasures n your own backyardit




OUTBOUND TOURISM

Report tracks Chinese

overseas travel trends

Mainlanders prefer
regional destinations

When choosing overseas
tourism destinations, Chi-
nese travelers prefer neigh-
boring countries and
regions, according to the
annual Report of Outbound
Tourism Development by the
China Tourism Academy, a
think tank under the nation-
al tourism administration.

Hong Kong and Macao
accepted more than 63 per-
cent of the 117 million total
outbound tourists from the
mainland in 2015. Despite
the fact that total visits to
Hong Kong in 2015 dropped
by 4.3 percent, to 45.8 mil-
lion, it still ranks at the top
for mainland visitors.

Other popular tourism
destinations include Thai-
land, South Korea, Japan,
Vietnam, the United States,
Singapore, Russia, Australia,
Indonesia and Malaysia.

Several countries and
regions saw huge growth —
Thailand was up 88 percent
(793 million visitors), Japan
was up 82 percent (4.99 mil-
lion visitors) and Vietnam was
up 68 percent (178 million vis-
itors).

dropped by 618 percent in
2015, while visits to Europe
increased by 23.8 percent,
the report said.

Most money spent
on shopping
‘When asking to rank their

However, visits to Africa

largest expenditures on over-
seas trips, 85.9 percent of
tourists answered shopping.

About 61 percent chose
fees paid to travel agencies
and local organizers. More
than 58 percent chose din-
ing.

Chinese people are not shy
about spending big during
overseas trips. More than 60
percent of tourists said their
budget for one trip was more
than 10,000 yuan ($1,500),
the outbound tourist report
said.

More than 30 percent said
they would spend 5,000 to
10,000 yuan for one trip.
Only 8 percent said their
budget was below 5,000
yuan.

Eastern China provides
most tourists

Beijing, Shanghai, Guang-
dong province, Jiangsu prov-
ince and Zhejiang province
were the top five source mar-
kets for China's booming
outbound tourism industry.
In 2015, Bejjing sent out 5.3
million citizens to travel
overseas, a year-on-year
jump of 29.7 percent. Aver-
age overseas spending was
5,000 to 15,000 yuan, the
report said.

Eastern China has a
mature tourism industry,
and it takes the lead both in
accepting tourists and send-
ing them out. Central China °
also makes a big contribu-
tion, the report said. The
gaps between western, cen-
tral and eastern China are
being narrowed as airports
are built and visa centers are
opened in second- and third-
tier cities, it said.

—SU ZHOU

A Chinese tourist takes a selfe In front of Notre Dame
Cathedral in Paris in May. sacky NAEGELEN / REUTERS



FRIDAY, Septemberg 2016

TOURISM

Exchange rates shaping travel plans

By SUZHOU
stzhou@chinadaily.com.cn

Uncertainties such as flue-
tuating currency exchange
rates and fear of terrorist
attacks are influencing out-
bound tourists’ decision-mak-
ing, says a new report.

The depreciation of the
yuan versus the US dollar
didn't have a significant
impact on tourism destina-
tions such as the United States
last year, according to the
annual report on China out-
bound tourism development,
released on Thursday by the
China Tourism Academy.

However, the yuan’s appre-
ciation against the Japanese
yen, the Russian rouble and
the Canadian dollar have
boosted quickly planned over-
seas trips, it said.

“Travel to destinations with
favorable currency exchange
rates has become a phenome-
non,” said Yang Jinsong, a pro-
fessor of international tourism

at the China Tourism Acade-
my.

“At the same time, terrorism
attacks have caused signifi-

cant negative impact on out-
bound tourism. Thailand,
France, Turkey and Egypt have
seen a drop in the number of
Chinese tourists.”

Last year, 117 million Chi-
nese mainland tourists visited
overseas countries and
regions, The number is expect-
ed to hit 133 million this year,
according to the China
National Tourism Adminis-
tration.

“Consumers are always sen-
sitive to the currency
exchange rate;” said Dong Na
at the Chinese online travel
agency Qunar. “During the
summer vacation, many tour-
ists have consulted about
whether a trip to Europe
would cost more”

“Generally speaking, tour-
ists need to spend more for
their overseas trips if the RMB
has depreciated against a bas-
ket of currencies. But tourists
know how to choose destina-
tions”

The United Kingdom has
benefited. The cheaper pound

and euro brought on by the

SEF “TRAVEL” PAGE 5

Outbound visits made by
Chinese mainland tourists
from 2011-16

* estimated

Unit: million

Source; China Nationgd Tourtsm Administration
LILY CHEN / CHINA DALY

Ataglance

The top 10 regions and
countries visited by
Chinese mainlanders
{8 Hong Kong

B} Macao

EJ Thailand

8 South Korea

E Japan

[ Taiwan

P[4l Vietnam

-} United States

=} Russia

i Australia

Travel: For
tourists, the
top concern 1s
NOwW securtty

FROM PAGE |

Brexit referendum in June is
an incentive for Chinese tray-
elers going to Britain, accord-
ing to Qunar. It said its travel
business to the United King-
dom increased by 35 percent
after July, compared with the
same period last year,

Liu Simin, vice-president of
the tourism branch of the Chi-
na Society for Futures Studies,
said that in the past, tourists
tended to choose tourism des-
tinations based on tourism
resources, visa requirements,
distance and cost. However,
the priority has changed in
recent years, Liu said.

The currency exchange rates
have influenced tourists
“becanse Chinese outhound
tourists are cost-sensitive and
love shopping” he said.

The report also said that
nearly 60 percent of Chinese
tourists said an overseas trip is
a big consumption decision.

Liu also said that, in the
past, not much attention was
paid to security concerns.

“However, security has
become the top concern?” he
said. “In the past, the tourism
industry would consider the
nagnﬁve impact brought by

natural disaster and political
disturbances as a short-term
issue. However, terrorism is
totally different”



: _Eli‘a i

g% {

: Bam@mumaln

¥ i,
= e

‘,:-.-

saruckicam
0 1t -0y




f ! f 1 ( ) —_ =] i J « J L J L J L J L | L )| [ J 1 J 3 e —J | |




